
Agenda compiled by: 
Guy Close 
Governance Services 
Civic Hall 
LEEDS LS1 1UR 
Telephone: 247 4356 
 

 
 
 

Principal Scrutiny Advisor: 
Kate Arscott 
Tel: 247 4189 
 

  Produced on Recycled Paper 

A 

 

 
 

 

SCRUTINY BOARD (CHILDREN'S SERVICES) 
 

 
Meeting to be held in Civic Hall, Leeds on 
Thursday, 17th July, 2008 at 9.45 am 

 
(A pre-meeting will take place for ALL Members of the Board at 9.15 a.m.) 

 
MEMBERSHIP 

 
Councillors 

B Cleasby - Horsforth 

G Driver - Middleton Park 

J Elliott - Morley South 

R D Feldman - Alwoodley 

W Hyde (Chair) - Temple Newsam 

B Lancaster - Moortown 

J McKenna - Armley 

V Morgan - Killingbeck and Seacroft 

Whip’s Nominee - Liberal Democrat Group 

K Renshaw - Ardsley and Robin Hood 

E Taylor - Chapel Allerton 

 
Co-opted Members (Voting) 

Mr E A Britten - Church Representative (Catholic) 
Prof P H J H Gosden - Church Representative (Church of England) 
Mr R Greaves - Parent Governor Representative (Secondary) 
Mr I Falkingham - Parent Governor Representative (Special) 
Mrs S Knights - Parent Governor Representative (Primary) 

 
Co-opted Members (Non-Voting) 

Mr T Hales - Teacher Representative 
Ms C Foote - Teacher Representative 
Mrs S Hutchinson - Early Years Development and Childcare Partnership 
Ms J Morris-Boam - Leeds VOICE Children and Young People Services 

Forum Representative 
Ms T Kayani - Leeds Youth Work Partnership Representative 

Public Document Pack



 

B 

A G E N D A 
 
 

Item 
No 

Ward/Equal 
Opportunities 

Item Not 
Open 

 Page 
No 

1   
 

  APPEALS AGAINST REFUSAL OF INSPECTION 
OF DOCUMENTS 
 
To consider any appeals in accordance with 
Procedure Rule 25 of the Access to Information 
Rules (in the event of an Appeal the press and 
public will be excluded). 
 
(*In accordance with Procedure Rule 25, written 
notice of an appeal must be received by the Chief 
Democratic Services Officer at least 24 hours 
before the meeting) 
 

 

2   
 

  EXEMPT INFORMATION - POSSIBLE 
EXCLUSION OF THE PRESS AND PUBLIC 
 
1 To highlight reports or appendices which 

officers have identified as containing exempt 
information, and where officers consider that 
the public interest in maintaining the 
exemption outweighs the public interest in 
disclosing the information, for the reasons 
outlined in the report. 

 
2 To consider whether or not to accept the 

officers recommendation in respect of the 
above information. 

 
3 If so, to formally pass the following 

resolution:- 
 
 RESOLVED – That the press and public be 

excluded from the meeting during 
consideration of the following parts of the 
agenda designated as containing exempt 
information on the grounds that it is likely, in 
view of the nature of the business to be 
transacted or the nature of the proceedings, 
that if members of the press and public were 
present there would be disclosure to them of 
exempt information, as follows:- 

 
 No exempt items or information have 

been identified on this agenda. 
 

 



 

C 

Item 
No 

Ward/Equal 
Opportunities 

Item Not 
Open 

 Page 
No 

3   
 

  LATE ITEMS 
 
To identify items which have been admitted to the 
agenda by the Chair for consideration.  
 
(The special circumstance shall be specified in the 
minutes.) 
 

 

4   
 

  DECLARATION OF INTERESTS 
 
To declare any personal/prejudicial interests for the 
purpose of Section 81(3) of the Local Government 
Act 2000 and paragraphs 8 to 12 of the Members’ 
Code of Conduct.  
 

 

5     APOLOGIES FOR ABSENCE 
 

 

6   
 

  MINUTES OF LAST MEETING 
 
To confirm as a correct record the minutes of the 
meeting held on 26th June, 2008.  
 

1 - 6 

7   
 

  INCLUSION STATEMENT - FORMAL 
RESPONSE 
 
To receive a report from the Head of Scrutiny and 
Member Development, which requests Members to 
consider responses to the Board’s statement on 
inclusion. 
 

7 - 26 

8   
 

  RECOMMENDATION TRACKING 
 
To receive and consider a report from the Head of 
Scrutiny and Member Development, which 
requests Members to confirm the status of 
recommendations from previous inquiries.   
 

27 - 
44 

9   
 

  CHILDREN AND YOUNG PEOPLE'S PLAN 2009: 
CONSULTATION PROCESS 
 
To receive and consider a report from the Head of 
Scrutiny and Member Development, which updates 
the Board on the development of the Children and 
Young People’s Plan 2009-2014. 
 

45 - 
56 



 

D 

Item 
No 

Ward/Equal 
Opportunities 

Item Not 
Open 

 Page 
No 

10   
 

  WORK PROGRAMME 
 
To receive a report from the Head of Scrutiny and 
Member Development, which outlines the Scrutiny 
Board’s work programme for the remainder of the 
current municipal year. 
 

57 - 
64 

11   
 

  DATE AND TIME OF NEXT MEETING 
 
To note that the next meeting of the Board will be 
held on 18th September, 2008 at 9.45 am with a 
pre-meeting for Board Members at 9.15 am. 
 

 

 



Draft minutes to be approved at the meeting  
to be held on Thursday, 17th July, 2008 

 

SCRUTINY BOARD (CHILDREN'S SERVICES) 
 

THURSDAY, 26TH JUNE, 2008 
 

PRESENT: 
 

Councillor W Hyde in the Chair 

 Councillors B Cleasby, G Driver, R D Feldman, 
J McKenna, K Renshaw and E Taylor 
 

CO-OPTED MEMBERS (VOTING): 
 

 Mr E A Britten - Church Representative 
(Catholic) 

 Mr I Falkingham - Parent Governor 
Representative (Special) 

 Prof P H J H Gosden - Church Representative 
(Church of England) 

 Mrs S Knights - Parent Governor 
Representative (Primary) 

CO-OPTED MEMBERS (NON-VOTING): 
 

 Ms C Foote - Teacher Representative 
 Mrs S Hutchinson - Early Years Development & 

Childcare Partnership 
Representative 

 Ms J Morris-Boam - Leeds Voice Children and 
Young People Services Forum 
Representative 

 Ms T Kayani - Leeds Youth Work Partnership 
 

1 Chair's Opening Remarks  
 

The Chair welcomed all in attendance to the first Scrutiny Board (Children’s 
Services) meeting of the municipal year 2008/09. 
 

2 Declaration of Interests  
 

There were no declarations at this point, however declarations were made at 
later points in the meeting (Minute Nos. 6 and 7 refer). 
 

3 Apologies for absence  
 

Apologies for absence were submitted by Councillors J Elliott, B Lancaster 
and V Morgan and by Mr R Greaves and Mr T Hales. 
 

4 Minutes of Last Meeting  
 

RESOLVED – That the minutes of the meeting held on 24th April, 2008 be 
confirmed as a correct record. 
 

5 Co-options to the Board  

Agenda Item 6

Page 1



Draft minutes to be approved at the meeting  
to be held on Thursday, 17th July, 2008 

 

 
The Board received a report from the Head of Scrutiny and Member 
Development, which sought Members’ approval for co-options to the Scrutiny 
Board. 

  
Members noted that Article 6 of the Council’s Constitution required the 
Scrutiny Board (Children’s Services) to include both a Church of England and 
a Roman Catholic diocesan representative, together with three parent 
governor representatives as voting co-opted members of the Board.  
 
Members also noted that each Scrutiny Board was permitted to appoint up to 
five non-voting co-opted members for the duration of the current municipal 
year.  In addition, each Scrutiny Board could appoint up to two non-voting co-
opted Members to assist with a particular scrutiny Inquiry.  
 
The Chair highlighted the co-opted Members’ significant contribution to the 
Board’s work.   
 
Members discussed the possibility of co-opting a young person onto the 
Board.  They were advised that there was already an established Young 
Person’s Scrutiny Forum.  The Principal Scrutiny Adviser pointed out that it 
would be difficult for a young person involved in full-time education to attend 
Scrutiny Board meetings as currently scheduled.  Members were reminded 
that the Board currently had a full quota of co-opted Members. 
 
RESOLVED –  
 
(a) That the re-appointment of Professor P H J H Gosden (Church 
Representative - Church of England) and Mr E A Britten (Church 
Representative - Roman Catholic) as voting co-opted members of the Board 
for 2008/09 be confirmed; 
 
(b) That the continued appointment of Mr R Greaves (Parent Governor 
Representative - Secondary), Mr I Falkingham (Parent Governor 
Representative - Special) and Mrs S Knights (Parent Governor 
Representative - Primary) be noted; 
 
(c) That Mr T Hales and Ms C Foote (Teacher Representatives), Mrs S 
Hutchinson (Early Years Development and Childcare Partnership 
Representative), Ms T Kayani (Youth Work Partnership Representative) and 
Ms J Morris-Boam (Leeds VOICE Children and Young People Services 
Forum Representative) be appointed as non-voting co-opted members of the 
Board for 2008/09;  
 
(d) That the option to co-opt a further two individuals for the duration of 
specific inquiries be noted; and 
 
(e) That the Principal Scrutiny Adviser report back on the possibility of co-
opting a young person onto the Board. 
 

Page 2



Draft minutes to be approved at the meeting  
to be held on Thursday, 17th July, 2008 

 

6 Input to the Work Programme 2008/09 - Sources of Work and 
Establishing the Board's Priorities  

 
The Head of Scrutiny and Member Development submitted a report, which 
provided information and guidance to assist the Board with developing its 
work programme for 2008/09. 
 
A range of core information relevant to the Board’s responsibilities was 
attached to the report to assist Members with identifying priorities for the 
coming year’s work programme. 
 
Councillor R Harker, Executive Member (Learning), Keith Burton, Deputy 
Director - Children’s Services, John Maynard, Strategic Leader - Children’s 
Services and Dirk Gilleard, Deputy Chief Executive - Education Leeds, were 
all in attendance. 
 
The Executive Member (Learning) thanked the Board for the work undertaken 
in 2007/08.  It was reported that the authority was currently involved with a 
range of activities aimed at improving Children’s Services. 
 
The Deputy Director, Children’s Services, provided the Board with an 
overview of the range of issues currently facing the Children’s Services 
portfolio in Leeds.  
 
The main highlighted points were:- 
 
Strategy and Development 
 
- Child poverty with a focus on Early Years Health Inequalities was high on 

the Government agenda. 
- The ‘Think Family’ approach would involve joint working with Adult Social 

Services. 
- The future of social care - focus was on prevention work, linked with 

‘Beyond Care Matters’ and the changing role of social workers. 
- The Education and Skills Bill - new powers to be introduced and changing 

role for the local authority. 
- New Migrant Families - supporting young people to make transition with 

particular focus on vulnerable and under-performing groups. 
 
Challenge 
 
- Development of performance management, particularly focusing on high 

risk areas, including; young people not in education, employment or 
training (NEET), teenage pregnancy, attendance and roll out of 14-19 
provision.   

 
High Public Interest 
 
- Primary Capital Programme - changes planned for primary infrastructure. 
- Transport - emphasis on role of extended services and value for money. 

Page 3



Draft minutes to be approved at the meeting  
to be held on Thursday, 17th July, 2008 

 

- Persistent absence - improving attendance by encouraging greater 
parental involvement. 

 
Continuous Monitoring 
 
- Children and Young People’s Plan (CYPP) Review - draft review expected 

in January 2009. 
- Internal Audit processes - outcomes arising from Inquiries into Services 

for 8-13 year olds and Education Standards. 
 
Questions and comments were then invited and the main areas of discussion 
were:-  
 

• How schools and families were being prepared for forthcoming 
changes to the benefits system. 

• Various aspects of secondary and post-16 education and training. 

• The Board discussed the possibility of undertaking an Inquiry in relation 
to teenage conceptions.  The Chair advised that a working group had 
been set-up last year, which had recommended further work. 

• The Board also discussed the Youth Service and data quality issues.  
The Board requested a copy of the action plan to address this problem. 

 
The Chair then thanked the Executive Member (Learning) and officers for 
their attendance at the meeting. 
 
RESOLVED – That the report and information appended to the report be 
noted. 
 
(Councillor K Renshaw declared a personal interest in this item due to being a 
Governor of Rodillian High School, Seven Hills Primary School and East 
Ardsley Primary School and also due to her employment as a Nursery Nurse.) 
 

7 Determining the Work Programme for 2008/09  
 

The Head of Scrutiny and Member Development submitted a report to assist 
the Board with determining its work programme for 2008/09. 
 
Appended to the report was the inquiry selection criteria and an outline work 
programme. 
 
Having considered the information detailed within agenda item 8, and having 
discussed relevant issues with the Executive Member (Learning) and Deputy 
Director, Children’s Services, the Board was invited to consider formulating a 
draft work programme.  
 
In brief summary, the main highlighted points were:- 
 

• Members discussed receiving a summary of the work that had been 
undertaken to assist the Board with formulating its work programme.   

Page 4



Draft minutes to be approved at the meeting  
to be held on Thursday, 17th July, 2008 

 

• One Member suggested that some key areas could be linked together, 
e.g. young people’s access to diplomas and reducing NEET.   

• The Board considered looking into the role of voluntary and community 
sector providers and extended services clusters.  

• One Member referred to the review of 14-19 provision.  It was 
suggested that further work could be undertaken, focussing on young 
people with additional needs.  

 
(Ms T Kayani declared a personal interest in this item as Chief Executive 
of a voluntary sector organisation.) 
 
RESOLVED – That the Board’s Principal Scrutiny Adviser be requested to 
update and timetable the Board’s work programme for 2008/09.  

 
8 Dates of Future Meetings  
 

RESOLVED – That the following dates be noted and approved:- 
 

- Thursday 17th July, 2008 
- Thursday 18th September, 2008 
- Thursday 16th October, 2008 
- Thursday 13th November, 2008 
- Thursday 11th December, 2008 
- Thursday 8th January, 2009 
- Thursday 5th February, 2009 
- Thursday 5th March, 2009 
- Thursday 2nd April, 2009.  

 
 
(The meeting concluded at 11.45 am.) 
 
 
 

Page 5



Page 6

This page is intentionally left blank



 
Report of the Head of Scrutiny and Member Development 
 
Scrutiny Board (Children’s Services) 
 
Date: 17 July 2008 
 
Subject: Inclusion Statement - Formal Response 
 

        
 
 
 
1.0 Introduction 
 
1.1 During 2007/2008, the Scrutiny Board (Children’s Services) set up a working group on 

inclusion. The board issued a statement setting out its conclusions and 
recommendations in April 2008. 

1.2 It is the normal practice to request a formal response from departments to the board’s 
recommendations, once a statement has been issued.  

1.3 A formal response to the statement has now been received. This is attached as 
appendix 1. 

1.4 Members are asked to consider the responses provided, and to decide whether any 
further scrutiny involvement is required.  

 
1.5 Any recommendations which have not yet been completed will be included in future 

quarterly recommendation tracking reports to enable the Board to continue to monitor 
progress. 

 
2.0 Recommendation 
 
2.1 Members are asked to consider the responses provided and to decide whether  

further scrutiny involvement is required.  
 

Specific Implications For:  

 
Equality and Diversity 
  
Community Cohesion 
 
Narrowing the Gap 

Electoral Wards Affected:  

 
 

 

 

Originator: Kate Arscott 
 
Tel: 247 4189 

Agenda Item 7

Page 7



Page 8

This page is intentionally left blank



 

 

scrutiny.unit@leeds.gov.uk 

 

Scrutiny Board (Children’s Services) - Statement on Inclusion –  Published April  2008  
 scrutiny.unit@leeds.gov.uk 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 
  

 

Statement of  
 
 

Scrutiny Board  
(Children’s Services) 

 

Inclusion 
 

 

Page 9



 

scrutiny.unit@leeds.gov.uk 

 

 

Introduction  

Scrutiny Board (Children’s Services) - Statement on Inclusion –  Published April  2008  
 scrutiny.unit@leeds.gov.uk 

Introduction 
 

1. At its meeting in October 2007, 
the Scrutiny Board (Children’s 
Services) considered the draft  
Leeds Inclusive Learning 
Strategy. 

2. The revised Inclusive Learning 
Strategy is a Children Leeds 
strategy, and whilst its initial 
focus is on education, the aim is 
to develop more multi-
disciplinary working. 

3. Having considered the draft 
Strategy, the Board appointed a 
working group to give more 
detailed consideration to two of 
the strategic objectives outlined 
in the strategy: 

• the further development of 
specialist provision, including 
the role of the SILCs; 

• the further development of the 
behaviour continuum and 
provision, including the role of 
the pupil referral units.  

4. The working group was also 
commissioned by the Board to 
review progress in 
implementing the 
recommendations made by the 
Scrutiny Board (Children’s 
Services) in April 2006 arising 
from its inquiry into Specialist 
Inclusive Learning Centres 
(SILCs). 

 

5. The working group met on three 
occasions: 5th December 2007, 
27th January and 6th March 
2008.  

6. Following presentation of the 
working group’s findings to the 
full Scrutiny Board, the Board 
has agreed the following 
statement and 
recommendations. 

 

 
 
 
 
 

Page 10



 

scrutiny.unit@leeds.gov.uk 

 

Comments and 

Recommendations 

Scrutiny Board (Children’s Services) - Statement on Inclusion –  Published April  2008  
 scrutiny.unit@leeds.gov.uk 

 
 SILCs 

1. At the first meeting of the 
working group the focus was on 
strategic objective 2 of the 
Inclusive Learning Strategy: the 
further development of 
specialist provision, including 
the role of the SILCs. 

2. Members considered the project 
brief and action plans for this 
objective of the strategy.  

3. This objective will seek to bring 
greater coherence and 
consistency to the roles of the 
various types of provision – ie 
mainstream school, resourced 
provision, SILC partnerships, 
SILCs – so that there is a clear 
continuum of provision to meet 
varying levels of need. 

4. Members flagged parental 
participation as an ongoing 
concern, even whilst 
acknowledging the positive 
progress and activity that has 
taken place, particularly 
recently. 

5. In particular, parental 
perception about the amount of 
choice parents have with regard 
to a SILC or mainstream 
placement for their child 
remains an issue for some 
parents. A key factor here is the 
requirement for a statement in 
order to access a SILC place. 

Some parents apparently still 
feel pressured to accept a 
mainstream placement, yet they 
may have reservations about 
the local mainstream schools’ 
capacity to meet their child’s 
additional needs. 

6. Officers repeated a request for 
Members of the Scrutiny Board 
to encourage individual parents 
who approached them with 
concerns about inappropriate 
placements to contact 
Education Leeds, in order that 
they could fulfil their duty to 
investigate these cases. 

7. This led on to another concern 
of the working group – 
regarding the appropriate use of 
special educational needs 
(SEN) funding through the 
Funding for Inclusion (FFI) 
scheme, by some mainstream 
schools. Funding for pupils’ 
special educational needs in 
mainstream schools is 
delegated to schools, and the 
management and governing 
body will then determine how it 
is spent at their discretion.  

8. Members were very pleased to 
hear that closer monitoring of 
how schools spend resources 
allocated to them for SEN 
provision is being incorporated 
into Education Leeds’ school 
improvement teams and School 
Improvement Partners’ 
monitoring and challenge of 

Page 11



 

scrutiny.unit@leeds.gov.uk 

 

Comments and 

Recommendations 

Scrutiny Board (Children’s Services) - Statement on Inclusion –  Published April  2008  
 scrutiny.unit@leeds.gov.uk 

schools, on an outcome 
focused basis. This is part of a 
stronger inclusion focus in this 
relationship. 

Recommendation 1  
That Education Leeds report 
quarterly to the Scrutiny Board 
(Children’s Services) on any 
concerns regarding schools’ use 
of delegated SEN funding raised 
through the school improvement 
process, and how schools have 
responded to challenge. 

9. Outreach was felt to be another 
key area for development, in 
order to use existing expertise 
from SILCs and partnership 
schools to support mainstream 
schools to increase their ability 
to meet the needs of SEN 
pupils well. The Working Group 
agreed that further developing 
the expertise of mainstream 
schools is still a key issue in 
making mainstream school a 
realistic option for more parents. 

10.  Some members of the working 
group also maintain concerns 
that, where some mainstream 
schools rely extensively on 
Teaching Assistants and Higher 
Level Teaching Assistants to 
provide support for these pupils, 
then there is not enough 
pedagogical input for these 
children and that they may not 
achieve their full educational 
potential as a result. This was 
not felt to be a widespread 

problem, but was a significant 
factor for those small number of 
pupils struggling to cope. 

11. Whilst it will take some time to 
deliver the objectives of the 
Inclusive Learning Strategy, the 
working group was reminded 
that recent Ofsted inspections 
had judged existing SILC 
provision to be good or 
outstanding. Existing pupils 
were benefiting from ongoing 
improvements and 
developments at the same time 
as the longer term plans were 
being progressed. 

12. Officers also informed the 
working group that the review of 
provision as part of this 
objective acknowledged the 
need for specialist SEN 
provision to be available in each 
area of the city, although in 
some cases that may not be in 
the current location(s). 

13. In particular, the various school 
building programmes offered 
opportunities, such as the 
development at Temple Moor 
with the East SILC. 

Recommendation 2 

That Education Leeds commits 
to early consultation with 
parents and professionals on 
any proposals for changes in the 
location of specialist SEN 
provision.    

Page 12



 

scrutiny.unit@leeds.gov.uk 

 

Comments and 

Recommendations 

Scrutiny Board (Children’s Services) - Statement on Inclusion –  Published April  2008  
 scrutiny.unit@leeds.gov.uk 

 

Behaviour 

14. The second meeting of the 
working group focused on the 
third objective of the Leeds 
Inclusive Learning Strategy – 
the further development of the 
behaviour continuum and 
provision, including the role of 
the pupil referral units. The 
Board’s particular interest in this 
objective was sparked by 
concerns raised in spring 2007, 
when the Board received a 
briefing on the No Child Left 
Behind initiative and the Area 
Management Board 
arrangements.  

15. At that time, members had 
noted the governance and joint 
working arrangements being put 
in place, but asked for further 
evidence of additional support 
on the ground to assist staff in 
schools to tackle behaviour 
issues on a day to day basis, 
especially at the lower end of 
the continuum. 

16. The working group received a 
presentation on the 
development of a new model for 
the behaviour continuum, which 
demonstrates how provision 
would be delivered in each 
wedge of the city, providing a 
range of levels of support from 
assistance in schools through to 
a centralised BESD (Behaviour, 

Emotional and Social 
Difficulties) SILC provision. 

17. A diagram of the model and a 
description of the provision 
planned for each Key Stage is 
appended to this report. 

18. Although this hub and spoke 
model is still subject to 
consultation, some parts of it 
are already being developed, 
for example the Oasis centres. 
If fully implemented, it will 
increase the availability of local 
behaviour provision, particularly 
at an ‘intermediate’ level. 

19. The working group discussed 
the geographical distribution of 
current provision, and in 
particular the impact on 
travelling times for pupils, and 
the cost of transport. For 
example members noted that 
approximately £120k of the 
£400k budget for the Oakwood 
site was spent on taxi fares. 

20. It is anticipated that one of the 
benefits of the new model will 
be that transport costs will 
reduce, with more money 
available to spend directly on 
provision. 

21. Members stressed the 
importance of the new provision 
developing the notion of a 
‘revolving door’ so that pupils 
returned to mainstream 
provision as soon as possible, 

Page 13



 

scrutiny.unit@leeds.gov.uk 

 

Comments and 

Recommendations 

Scrutiny Board (Children’s Services) - Statement on Inclusion –  Published April  2008  
 scrutiny.unit@leeds.gov.uk 

and other ‘at risk’ pupils are 
able to benefit from support. 
This is key to resolving 
historical perceptions of 
blockages in the system. 

22. The working group asked if 
there was any evidence or case 
studies relating to the number of 
young people ‘saved’ from 
exclusion by intermediate 
interventions such as alternative 
programmes. There should be a 
system of tracking and 
monitoring the success of the 
various interventions across the 
whole behaviour continuum as 
part of the increased drive for 
accountability in this area. 

Recommendation 3  
That Education Leeds reports to 
the Scrutiny Board on how it will 
monitor the success of different 
behaviour interventions across 
the whole continuum in 
achieving outcomes for pupils 
(including mainstream schools, 
alternative provision, 
partnership provision, resourced 
provision, Area Management 
Board provision, Pupil 
Development Centres, Learning 
Support Units, Oasis provision, 
Teaching and Learning Centres, 
Pupil Referral Units and SILC 
provision). 

23. In terms of staff development, 
the working group discussed 
some of the keys to success. In 
particular, siting new provision 

in excellent schools was a 
deliberate strategy. Education 
Leeds was also exploring the 
potential for mainstream staff to 
be seconded to behaviour 
provision to develop their 
expertise. 

24. Members talked about issues 
around transition from primary 
to secondary school. They 
suggested the need to identify 
vulnerable pupils who have not 
quite required outside 
placements in primary school, 
but for whom the disruption of 
transfer to secondary school is 
liable to trigger such a need. 
Primary schools identifying such 
pupils and alerting secondary 
schools was part of a 
preventative strategy, but it was 
also hoped that the new Oasis 
centres would help meet this 
type of need. 

25. Members asked about the 
referral routes for the Oasis 
provision, which will take the 
form of eight place provision 
which pupils will typically attend 
for half a term, whilst 
maintaining regular contact and 
part-time attendance at their 
existing mainstream school. 
The working group was told that 
it was expected that the referral 
route would be via schools, 
against locally set criteria. It 
was not anticipated that parents 
would be able to refer a child, 
although if a school refused to 

Page 14



 

scrutiny.unit@leeds.gov.uk 

 

Comments and 

Recommendations 

Scrutiny Board (Children’s Services) - Statement on Inclusion –  Published April  2008  
 scrutiny.unit@leeds.gov.uk 

refer a child the parent would of 
course have recourse to normal 
routes to pursue any complaint, 
including through the governing 
body or the Parent Partnership 
Service. 

26. The working group advised that 
it was important that referral 
routes need to be set out clearly 
from the outset, as it was 
circumstances such as this 
which could create tensions 
with parents when they felt that 
the system was failing them. 

Recommendation 4  
That Education Leeds clearly 
sets out the referral routes for 
the Oasis centres. 

27. The working group discussed 
with officers the progress that 
was being made in establishing 
an ongoing dialogue with 
parents, both collectively and 
individually. It was recognised 
that on the whole 
communication had improved 
significantly, but members 
stressed that the positive work 
on this issue needed to be 
maintained through continued 
efforts in order to overcome 
some of the deep-seated history 
of parental suspicion.  

28. The working group was also 
very interested to discover how 
the changing pattern of school 
provision – ie the establishment 

of Academies and Trusts – 
impacted on behaviour issues. 

29. Aspects discussed included: 

• Exclusions 

• Exemptions from admitting 
pupils excluded from other 
schools  

• Admissions policies and the 
knock-on impact on the intake 
of other local schools 

• Different trigger levels for 
exclusion 

• Different financial rules – 
funding does not follow the 
excluded pupil in the case of the 
Academy. 

Recommendation 5  
That Education Leeds continues 
to lobby the DCSF to ensure that 
the establishment of future 
Academies, especially in Leeds, 
provides for funding to follow an 
excluded pupil. 

30. Members were pleased to hear 
from officers of the work that 
had been done to develop 
relationships between 
Education Leeds and the David 
Young Community Academy, as 
well as other local schools, and 
of the success of this work so 
far. It was helpful to be able to 
discuss these issues with 
officers, following the 
attendance of the Academy 
Principal at the Scrutiny Board 
the previous week. 

Page 15



 

scrutiny.unit@leeds.gov.uk 

 

Comments and 

Recommendations 

Scrutiny Board (Children’s Services) - Statement on Inclusion –  Published April  2008  
 scrutiny.unit@leeds.gov.uk 

31. Some of the lessons learned 
were being built into the draft 
protocols for any future 
Academies and partnerships in 
Leeds, as an expression of the 
local authority’s ethos and 
commitment to schools working 
collaboratively. This is an issue 
that the Scrutiny Board has 
stressed continuously 
throughout its work, and 
particularly in its inquiry last 
year on the implications of trust 
schools for the local authority. 

32. The working group also noted 
that the change to Trust status 
in Garforth had not resulted in 
any changes in access to 
provision to date. 

Scrutiny Inquiry on SILCs 

33. The working group was also 
tasked by the Scrutiny Board 
with tracking progress in 
implementing the 
recommendations of the original 
SILCs inquiry, which reported in 
April 2006.  

34. When the SILCs inquiry report 
was originally produced, it had 
been anticipated that a review 
of the SEN policy, including 
accommodation and funding 
was imminent. 

35. Members were clear in their 
inquiry report that “We also 
need to recognise that our 
inquiry took place at a particular 

moment in time, and our 
findings will reflect that fact.” 

36. Eighteen months on from the 
original scrutiny inquiry, the 
publication of the refreshed 
Leeds Inclusive Learning 
Strategy meant that there was a 
need to revisit these findings 
and take stock of progress. 
Accordingly, the working group 
considered an update on each 
of the recommendations, 
relating them to the Leeds 
Inclusive Learning Strategy. 

37. In order to reflect the new 
approach outlined in the 
Inclusive Learning Strategy, it is 
agreed that it is no longer 
appropriate to monitor the 
recommendations as they were 
originally written in 2006. 

38. Instead the working group has 
considered how the new 
approach outlined in the new 
Strategy reflects the spirit of the 
Board’s previous inquiry and 
recommended to the Board that 
implementation of the four 
strategic objectives contained in 
the Leeds Inclusive Learning  
Strategy should form the key 
focus for ongoing monitoring. 

39. The Scrutiny Board has agreed 
that this will form the basis for 
the next stage of its involvement 
in the development of inclusive 
practice. 

Page 16



 

scrutiny.unit@leeds.gov.uk 

 

Comments and 

Recommendations 

Scrutiny Board (Children’s Services) - Statement on Inclusion –  Published April  2008  
 scrutiny.unit@leeds.gov.uk 

Recommendation 6 
That Education Leeds and the 
Principal Scrutiny Adviser 
devise an appropriate framework 
for the Scrutiny Board to monitor 
implementation of the Leeds 
Inclusive Learning Strategy 
during 2008/09. 

Page 17



 

scrutiny.unit@leeds.gov.uk 

 

Participants 

Scrutiny Board (Children’s Services) - Statement on Inclusion –  Published April  2008  
 scrutiny.unit@leeds.gov.uk 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Witnesses  
 

Carol Jordan – Strategic Manager for Integrated Children’s Services, Education Leeds 

  John Fryett – North West Leeds Area Management Board Inclusion Project Director, 
Education Leeds 

Andrew Hobbs – Change Consultant, Education Leeds 

  Sue Morgan – Inclusion and SEN Development Officer, Education Leeds 

Liz Lowes – Change Coordinator, Education Leeds 

Gary Nixon – Head of Service, Education Leeds 

 Diane Reynard - Principal of the East SILC 

Bob Stott – No Child Left Behind Project Director, Education Leeds 

 

Members of the Working Group 
 
 Councillor W Hyde 
 Councillor J Langdale 
 Mr E A Britten 
 Mr I Falkingham 
 Ms C Foote 
 Mrs S Knights 
 Prof P Gosden 
 
  

Page 18



 

 

 

HUB & SPOKE  January 2008 
              SPECIALIST 
Area based        BESD PROVISION 
 
  
 

 

 

 

 

 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 

Key Stage 4 BESD 
 

SILC 

Key Stage 3 BESD 
 
Assessment           SILC 

Unit 

Key Stage 2 BESD 
 
Assessment           SILC 

Unit 

 

NE 

TLC 

R 

NE 

SILC 

Oasis 

P 

 

E 

TLC 

Oasis 

E 

SILC 

R P 

 

NW 

TLC 

Oasis 

NW 

SILC 

R P 
 

 

W 

TLC 

W 

SILC 

R P 
Oasis S 

SILC 

R P 

Oasis 

CITY WIDE 

 

S  

TLC 

R= Resourced provision 
P= Partnership provision 

P
a
g
e
 1

9



 

 

1. At Key Stages 1&2, the following behaviour continuum is envisaged: 

Universal Universal Targeted Targeted Targeted Specialist 

Primary 
schools 

Nurture 
provision 

Pupil 
Development 
Centres 
(PDC) 

Oasis 
provision 

KS2 
Pupil 
Referral 
Unit 
(PRU) 

KS2 SILC 

 

2. At Key Stage 3, the following behaviour continuum is envisaged: 

 

3.  At Key Stage 4, the following behaviour continuum is envisaged: 

 

 

 

Universal Universal Targeted Targeted Targeted Specialist 

Secondary 
schools 

Learning 
Mentors 

Learning 
Support 
Units 
(LSU) 

Learning 
Centres 

KS3 
PRU 

KS3  
BESD 
SILC 

Universal Universal Targeted Targeted Targeted Specialist 

Secondary 
schools 

Learning 
Mentors 

LSUs Learning 
Centres 

Alternative  
Provision 

KS4  
BESD 
SILC 

Page 20



In
c
lu
s
iv
e
 L
e
a
rn
in
g
 S
tr
a
te
g
y
 

 A
c
ti
o
n
 P
la
n
 i
n
 R
e
s
p
o
n
s
e
 t
o
 S
c
ru
ti
n
y
 I
n
q
u
ir
y
 R
e
p
o
rt
 A
p
ri
l 
2
0
0
8
 

 

R
e
c
o
m
m
e
n
d
a
ti
o
n
s
 

 
A
c
ti
o
n
s
 p
ro
p
o
s
e
d
 

R
e
s
p
o
n
s
ib
il
it
y
 

T
im
e
s
c
a
le
 

P
ro
g
re
s
s
 

 R
e
c
o
m
m
e
n
d
a
ti
o
n
 1
 

 T
h
a
t 
E
d
u
c
a
ti
o
n
 L
e
e
d
s
 

re
p
o
rt
 q
u
a
rt
e
rl
y
 t
o
 t
h
e
 

S
c
ru
ti
n
y
 B
o
a
rd
 (
C
h
il
d
re
n
’s
 

S
e
rv
ic
e
s
) 
o
n
 a
n
y
 c
o
n
c
e
rn
s
 

re
g
a
rd
in
g
 s
c
h
o
o
ls
’ 
u
s
e
 o
f 

d
e
le
g
a
te
d
 S
E
N
 f
u
n
d
in
g
 

ra
is
e
d
 t
h
ro
u
g
h
 t
h
e
 s
c
h
o
o
l 

im
p
ro
v
e
m
e
n
t 
p
ro
c
e
s
s
, 
a
n
d
 

h
o
w
 s
c
h
o
o
ls
 h
a
v
e
 

re
s
p
o
n
d
e
d
 t
o
 c
h
a
ll
e
n
g
e
. 

  

   E
d
u
c
a
ti
o
n
 L
e
e
d
s
 a
re
 d
e
v
e
lo
p
in
g
 a
 

m
o
n
it
o
ri
n
g
 a
n
d
 a
c
c
o
u
n
ta
b
ili
ty
 

fr
a
m
e
w
o
rk
 t
h
a
t 
w
ill
 i
n
c
lu
d
e
 v
a
lu
e
 f
o
r 

m
o
n
e
y
 j
u
d
g
e
m
e
n
ts
, 
a
g
a
in
s
t 
p
u
p
il 

o
u
tc
o
m
e
s
 a
n
d
 o
rg
a
n
is
a
ti
o
n
a
l 
p
ra
c
ti
c
e
. 

 W
o
rk
in
g
 i
n
 p
a
rt
n
e
rs
h
ip
 w
it
h
 s
c
h
o
o
ls
, 
a
 

d
o
c
u
m
e
n
t 
w
ill
 b
e
 p
ro
d
u
c
e
d
 t
h
a
t 
s
e
ts
 

o
u
t 
th
e
 f
u
ll 
ra
n
g
e
 o
f 
re
s
o
u
rc
e
s
 

a
v
a
ila
b
le
 t
o
 s
u
p
p
o
rt
 c
h
ild
re
n
 w
it
h
 

S
E
N
, 
w
it
h
 c
le
a
r 
g
u
id
a
n
c
e
 a
s
 t
o
 h
o
w
 

th
e
s
e
 r
e
s
o
u
rc
e
s
 c
a
n
 b
e
 u
ti
lis
e
d
. 

 A
n
 i
m
p
ro
v
e
d
 d
a
ta
 s
e
t 
fo
r 
In
c
lu
s
io
n
 t
h
a
t 

w
ill
 i
n
c
lu
d
e
 b
o
th
 f
u
n
d
in
g
 a
n
d
 

o
u
tc
o
m
e
s
 f
o
r 
c
h
ild
re
n
 w
ill
 e
n
a
b
le
 

im
p
ro
v
e
d
 s
u
p
p
o
rt
 a
n
d
 c
h
a
lle
n
g
e
 

m
e
c
h
a
n
is
m
s
 w
it
h
in
 w
h
ic
h
 j
u
d
g
e
m
e
n
ts
 

c
a
n
 b
e
 m
a
d
e
. 

 

   G
a
ry
 N
ix
o
n
 

   B
y
 J
u
ly
 2
0
0
9
 

   A
n
 o
ff
ic
e
r 
w
it
h
in
 t
h
e
 

P
e
rf
o
rm
a
n
c
e
 a
n
d
 

M
a
n
a
g
e
m
e
n
t 
In
fo
rm
a
ti
o
n
 

T
e
a
m
 (
P
M
IT
) 
h
a
s
 b
e
e
n
 

id
e
n
ti
fi
e
d
 t
o
 p
ro
g
re
s
s
 t
h
e
 

d
a
ta
 w
o
rk
. 
  

 T
h
e
 r
e
c
e
n
tl
y
 e
s
ta
b
lis
h
e
d
 

S
E
N
, 
S
ta
tu
to
ry
 A
s
s
e
s
s
m
e
n
t 

a
n
d
 P
ro
v
is
io
n
 T
e
a
m
 

(S
E
N
S
A
P
) 
w
ill
 h
a
v
e
 t
h
is
 a
s
 a
 

k
e
y
 f
o
c
u
s
 o
f 
th
e
ir
 w
o
rk
 o
v
e
r 

th
e
 n
e
x
t 
1
2
 m
o
n
th
s
. 
 

Page 21



 

R
e
c
o
m
m
e
n
d
a
ti
o
n
s
 

 
A
c
ti
o
n
s
 p
ro
p
o
s
e
d
 

R
e
s
p
o
n
s
ib
il
it
y
 

T
im
e
s
c
a
le
 

P
ro
g
re
s
s
 

 R
e
c
o
m
m
e
n
d
a
ti
o
n
 2
 

 T
h
a
t 
E
d
u
c
a
ti
o
n
 L
e
e
d
s
 

c
o
m
m
it
s
 t
o
 e
a
rl
y
 

c
o
n
s
u
lt
a
ti
o
n
 w
it
h
 p
a
re
n
ts
 

a
n
d
 p
ro
fe
s
s
io
n
a
ls
 o
n
 a
n
y
 

p
ro
p
o
s
a
ls
 f
o
r 
c
h
a
n
g
e
s
 i
n
 

th
e
 l
o
c
a
ti
o
n
 o
f 
s
p
e
c
ia
li
s
t 

S
E
N
 p
ro
v
is
io
n
. 
  
 

 

T
h
e
 d
e
v
e
lo
p
m
e
n
t 
o
f 
S
p
e
c
ia
lis
t 
P
ro
v
is
io
n
, 

in
c
lu
d
in
g
 t
h
e
 S
IL
C
s
 i
s
 O
b
je
c
ti
v
e
 2
 w
it
h
in
 

th
e
 L
e
e
d
s
 I
n
c
lu
s
iv
e
 L
e
a
rn
in
g
 S
tr
a
te
g
y
 

(L
IL
s
).
  

 A
n
 a
u
d
it
 o
f 
c
u
rr
e
n
t 
a
n
d
 f
u
tu
re
 p
ro
je
c
ti
o
n
s
 

o
f 
th
e
 S
E
N
 p
o
p
u
la
ti
o
n
 a
re
 i
n
fo
rm
in
g
 t
h
e
 

d
e
v
e
lo
p
m
e
n
t 
o
f 
a
 r
a
n
g
e
 o
f 
p
ro
v
is
io
n
s
 

w
it
h
in
 l
o
c
a
lit
ie
s
 t
o
 e
n
s
u
re
 i
m
p
ro
v
e
d
 

p
a
th
w
a
y
s
 f
o
r 
c
h
ild
re
n
. 
 

 P
ro
p
o
s
a
ls
 f
o
r 
th
e
 d
e
v
e
lo
p
m
e
n
t 
o
f 

s
p
e
c
ia
lis
t 
p
ro
v
is
io
n
 w
ill
 b
e
 c
o
n
s
u
lt
e
d
 o
n
 

w
it
h
 a
 w
id
e
 r
a
n
g
e
 o
f 
s
ta
k
e
h
o
ld
e
rs
 

in
c
lu
d
in
g
 p
a
re
n
ts
. 
  

 

   G
a
ry
 N
ix
o
n
 

   B
y
 D
e
c
e
m
b
e
r 

2
0
0
8
 

 T
h
e
 a
u
d
it
 i
s
 n
o
w
 w
e
ll 
u
n
d
e
r 

w
a
y
. 
S
E
N
S
A
P
 i
s
 w
o
rk
in
g
 

c
o
lla
b
o
ra
ti
v
e
ly
 w
it
h
 P
M
IT
 

a
n
d
 S
c
h
o
o
l 
O
rg
a
n
is
a
ti
o
n
 t
o
 

e
n
s
u
re
 t
h
a
t 
th
e
 d
a
ta
 s
e
t 

u
p
o
n
 w
h
ic
h
 t
h
e
 m
o
d
e
l 
is
 

b
a
s
e
d
 i
s
 a
s
 a
c
c
u
ra
te
 a
n
d
 

d
e
ta
ile
d
 a
s
 p
o
s
s
ib
le
. 

A
g
re
e
m
e
n
t 
h
a
s
 b
e
e
n
 

re
a
c
h
e
d
 w
it
h
 S
IL
C
 P
ri
n
c
ip
a
ls
 

re
g
a
rd
in
g
 t
h
e
 o
p
ti
o
n
s
 f
o
r 
a
 

fu
tu
re
 m
o
d
e
l 
fo
r 
s
p
e
c
ia
lis
t 

p
ro
v
is
io
n
. 
A
 b
ri
e
fi
n
g
 

d
o
c
u
m
e
n
t 
a
s
 a
 p
re
c
u
rs
o
r 
to
 

a
 c
o
n
s
u
lt
a
ti
v
e
 d
o
c
u
m
e
n
t 
is
 

c
u
rr
e
n
tl
y
 b
e
in
g
 p
re
p
a
re
d
. 
It
 i
s
 

p
la
n
n
e
d
 t
h
a
t 
th
is
 w
ill
 b
e
 

a
v
a
ila
b
le
 b
y
 t
h
e
 e
n
d
 o
f 
J
u
ly
 

2
0
0
8
. 

 

Page 22



 

R
e
c
o
m
m
e
n
d
a
ti
o
n
s
 

 
A
c
ti
o
n
s
 p
ro
p
o
s
e
d
 

R
e
s
p
o
n
s
ib
il
it
y
 

T
im
e
s
c
a
le
 

P
ro
g
re
s
s
 

R
e
c
o
m
m
e
n
d
a
ti
o
n
 3
 

 T
h
a
t 
E
d
u
c
a
ti
o
n
 L
e
e
d
s
 

re
p
o
rt
s
 t
o
 t
h
e
 S
c
ru
ti
n
y
 

B
o
a
rd
 o
n
 h
o
w
 i
t 
w
il
l 

m
o
n
it
o
r 
th
e
 s
u
c
c
e
s
s
 o
f 

d
if
fe
re
n
t 
b
e
h
a
v
io
u
r 

in
te
rv
e
n
ti
o
n
s
 a
c
ro
s
s
 t
h
e
 

w
h
o
le
 c
o
n
ti
n
u
u
m
 i
n
 

a
c
h
ie
v
in
g
 o
u
tc
o
m
e
s
 f
o
r 

p
u
p
il
s
 (
in
c
lu
d
in
g
 

m
a
in
s
tr
e
a
m
 s
c
h
o
o
ls
, 

a
lt
e
rn
a
ti
v
e
 p
ro
v
is
io
n
, 

p
a
rt
n
e
rs
h
ip
 p
ro
v
is
io
n
, 

re
s
o
u
rc
e
d
 p
ro
v
is
io
n
, 
A
re
a
 

M
a
n
a
g
e
m
e
n
t 
B
o
a
rd
 

p
ro
v
is
io
n
, 
P
u
p
il
 

D
e
v
e
lo
p
m
e
n
t 
C
e
n
tr
e
s
, 

L
e
a
rn
in
g
 S
u
p
p
o
rt
 U
n
it
s
, 

O
a
s
is
 p
ro
v
is
io
n
, 
T
e
a
c
h
in
g
 

a
n
d
 L
e
a
rn
in
g
 C
e
n
tr
e
s
, 
P
u
p
il
 

R
e
fe
rr
a
l 
U
n
it
s
 a
n
d
 S
IL
C
 

p
ro
v
is
io
n
).
 

       

E
d
u
c
a
ti
o
n
 L
e
e
d
s
 a
s
 p
u
rc
h
a
s
e
r 
w
ill
 

p
re
p
a
re
 a
 s
e
rv
ic
e
 s
p
e
c
if
ic
a
ti
o
n
 o
u
tl
in
in
g
 

th
e
 o
u
tc
o
m
e
s
 a
c
ro
s
s
 t
h
e
 b
e
h
a
v
io
u
r 

c
o
n
ti
n
u
u
m
 t
h
a
t 
it
 e
x
p
e
c
ts
 t
h
e
 A
re
a
 

M
a
n
a
g
e
m
e
n
t 
B
o
a
rd
s
 (
A
M
B
s
) 
a
s
 

p
ro
v
id
e
rs
 t
o
 i
m
p
a
c
t 
u
p
o
n
. 
O
n
 t
h
e
 b
a
s
is
 o
f 

th
is
 b
o
th
 p
a
rt
ie
s
 w
ill
 a
g
re
e
 a
 s
e
rv
ic
e
 l
e
v
e
l 

a
g
re
e
m
e
n
t 
(S
L
A
) 
w
it
h
 t
h
e
 A
M
B
s
 r
e
la
ti
n
g
 

to
 t
h
e
 m
o
n
ie
s
 d
e
le
g
a
te
d
 t
o
 t
h
e
 A
M
B
s
. 

 R
e
v
is
e
d
 P
R
U
 m
a
n
a
g
e
m
e
n
t 
c
o
m
m
it
te
e
 

w
ill
 r
e
c
e
iv
e
 r
e
g
u
la
r 
re
p
o
rt
s
 o
n
 a
ll 
p
u
p
il 

re
fe
rr
a
l 
u
n
it
s
 a
n
d
 o
u
tc
o
m
e
s
 f
o
r 
p
u
p
ils
 

e
d
u
c
a
te
d
 t
h
e
re
. 

 G
o
v
e
rn
in
g
 b
o
d
ie
s
 o
f 
in
d
iv
id
u
a
l 
S
IL
C
S
 w
ill
 

c
o
n
ti
n
u
e
 t
o
 m
o
n
it
o
r 
o
u
tc
o
m
e
s
 f
o
r 
th
e
ir
 

p
u
p
ils
 a
n
d
 r
e
c
e
iv
e
 e
x
te
rn
a
l 
e
v
a
lu
a
ti
o
n
 

fr
o
m
 S
c
h
o
o
l 
Im
p
ro
v
e
m
e
n
t 
P
a
rt
n
e
rs
. 
 

    T
h
e
 S
E
N
, 
S
ta
tu
to
ry
 A
s
s
e
s
s
m
e
n
t 
a
n
d
 

P
ro
v
is
io
n
 T
e
a
m
 w
ill
 m
o
n
it
o
r 
a
ll 
th
e
 

s
ta
tu
to
ry
 f
u
n
c
ti
o
n
s
 o
f 
th
e
 l
o
c
a
l 
a
u
th
o
ri
ty
 

re
la
ti
n
g
 t
o
 S
E
N
 f
u
n
c
ti
o
n
s
 a
n
d
 p
ri
o
ri
ti
e
s
. 

 

B
o
b
 S
to
tt
 

P
h
ili
p
 R
o
b
s
o
n
 

        W
e
n
d
y
 

W
in
te
rb
u
rn
 

   G
o
v
e
rn
in
g
 

B
o
d
ie
s
 

      G
a
ry
 N
ix
o
n
 

B
y
 O
c
to
b
e
r 

2
0
0
8
 

        B
y
 M
a
y
 2
0
0
8
 

    O
n
g
o
in
g
 

       O
n
g
o
in
g
 

M
e
e
ti
n
g
s
 t
o
 f
in
a
lis
e
 s
e
rv
ic
e
 

s
p
e
c
if
ic
a
ti
o
n
 a
re
 f
ix
e
d
 f
o
r 
J
u
ly
 

2
0
0
8
. 
D
is
c
u
s
s
io
n
s
 o
v
e
r 
S
L
A
 

w
ill
 b
e
 f
in
a
lis
e
d
 w
it
h
 A
M
B
s
 

d
u
ri
n
g
 S
e
p
te
m
b
e
r.
 

     R
e
v
is
e
d
 P
R
U
 m
a
n
a
g
e
m
e
n
t 

c
o
m
m
it
te
e
 i
s
 c
o
n
s
ti
tu
te
d
 a
n
d
 

m
e
e
ti
n
g
 o
n
 a
 r
e
g
u
la
r 
b
a
s
is
  

  T
h
e
 c
o
lle
c
ti
o
n
 a
n
d
 e
v
a
lu
a
ti
o
n
 

o
f 
p
ro
g
re
s
s
 d
a
ta
 f
ro
m
 S
IL
C
s
, 

in
c
lu
d
in
g
 P
 S
c
a
le
s
 a
n
d
 

P
IV
A
T
s
, 
is
 i
n
 p
la
c
e
. 
T
h
e
 

s
u
b
m
is
s
io
n
 o
f 
P
 l
e
v
e
l 
d
a
ta
 i
s
 

n
o
w
 a
 s
ta
tu
to
ry
 r
e
q
u
ir
e
m
e
n
t 

b
y
 t
h
e
  
D
C
S
F
. 

 T
h
e
 L
o
c
a
l 
A
u
th
o
ri
ty
 i
s
 

in
tr
o
d
u
c
in
g
 m
e
a
s
u
re
s
 t
o
 

e
n
s
u
re
 t
h
e
y
 c
o
m
p
ly
 w
it
h
 t
h
e
 

n
e
w
 P
la
n
n
in
g
 a
n
d
 D
e
v
e
lo
p
in
g
 

S
p
e
c
ia
l 
E
d
u
c
a
ti
o
n
 P
ro
v
is
io
n
 

G
u
id
a
n
c
e
 (
D
C
S
F
).
 

Page 23



 

R
e
c
o
m
m
e
n
d
a
ti
o
n
s
 

 
A
c
ti
o
n
s
 p
ro
p
o
s
e
d
 

R
e
s
p
o
n
s
ib
il
it
y
 

T
im
e
s
c
a
le
 

P
ro
g
re
s
s
 

 R
e
c
o
m
m
e
n
d
a
ti
o
n
 4
 

 T
h
a
t 

E
d
u
c
a
ti
o
n
 

L
e
e
d
s
 

c
le
a
rl
y
 s
e
ts
 o
u
t 
th
e
 r
e
fe
rr
a
l 

ro
u
te
s
 

fo
r 

th
e
 

O
a
s
is
 

c
e
n
tr
e
s
. 

 

   R
e
fe
rr
a
l 
ro
u
te
s
 i
n
to
 O
a
s
is
 P
ro
v
is
io
n
 

w
il
l 
b
e
 c
o
n
ta
in
e
d
 a
s
 a
n
 a
p
p
e
n
d
ix
 t
o
 t
h
e
 

S
L
A
 w
it
h
 A
re
a
 M
a
n
a
g
e
m
e
n
t 
B
o
a
rd
s
 

o
u
tl
in
e
d
 i
n
 r
e
c
o
m
m
e
n
d
a
ti
o
n
 3
. 

   B
o
b
 S
to
tt
  

P
h
ili
p
 R
o
b
s
o
n
 

   O
c
to
b
e
r 
2
0
0
8
 

     

   M
e
e
ti
n
g
s
 t
o
 f
in
a
lis
e
 s
e
rv
ic
e
 

s
p
e
c
if
ic
a
ti
o
n
 a
re
 f
ix
e
d
 f
o
r 
J
u
ly
 

2
0
0
8
. 
D
is
c
u
s
s
io
n
s
 o
v
e
r 
S
L
A
 

w
ill
 b
e
 f
in
a
lis
e
d
 w
it
h
 A
M
B
s
 

d
u
ri
n
g
 S
e
p
te
m
b
e
r.
 

       

R
e
c
o
m
m
e
n
d
a
ti
o
n
 5
 

T
h
a
t 
E
d
u
c
a
ti
o
n
 L
e
e
d
s
 

c
o
n
ti
n
u
e
s
 t
o
 l
o
b
b
y
 t
h
e
 

D
C
S
F
 t
o
 e
n
s
u
re
 t
h
a
t 
th
e
 

e
s
ta
b
li
s
h
m
e
n
t 
o
f 
fu
tu
re
 

A
c
a
d
e
m
ie
s
, 
e
s
p
e
c
ia
ll
y
 i
n
 

L
e
e
d
s
, 
p
ro
v
id
e
s
 f
o
r 

fu
n
d
in
g
 t
o
 f
o
ll
o
w
 a
n
 

e
x
c
lu
d
e
d
 p
u
p
il
. 

 

E
d
u
c
a
ti
o
n
 L
e
e
d
s
 h
a
s
 r
e
s
p
o
n
d
e
d
 t
o
 

c
o
n
s
u
lt
a
ti
o
n
 f
ro
m
 t
h
e
 D
C
S
F
 s
tr
e
s
s
in
g
 t
h
e
 

im
p
o
rt
a
n
c
e
 o
f 
th
e
 i
n
c
lu
s
io
n
 o
f 
a
c
a
d
e
m
ie
s
 

in
 r
e
g
a
rd
 t
o
 i
n
 Y
e
a
r 
F
a
ir
 A
c
c
e
s
s
 

a
rr
a
n
g
e
m
e
n
ts
 a
n
d
 a
ro
u
n
d
 l
o
c
a
lly
 

d
e
te
rm
in
e
d
 f
in
a
n
c
ia
l 
a
d
ju
s
tm
e
n
ts
 f
o
r 

e
x
c
lu
s
io
n
. 

S
im
o
n
 D
a
rb
y
  

M
a
rc
h
 2
0
0
8
 

T
h
e
 D
C
S
 h
a
s
 p
ro
p
o
s
e
d
 t
h
a
t 

b
u
d
g
e
t 
a
d
ju
s
tm
e
n
ts
 s
h
o
u
ld
 

a
p
p
ly
 t
o
 a
c
a
d
e
m
ie
s
 f
ro
m
 1
 

A
p
ri
l 
2
0
0
9
. 
T
w
o
 o
p
ti
o
n
s
 a
re
 

p
ro
p
o
s
e
d
: 

1
. 
A
ll 
A
c
a
d
e
m
ie
s
 w
ill
 b
e
 

s
u
b
je
c
t 
to
 s
ta
tu
to
ry
 

a
d
ju
s
tm
e
n
t.
 

2
. 
A
c
a
d
e
m
ie
s
 w
ill
 b
e
 

s
u
b
je
c
t 
to
 s
ta
tu
to
ry
 

a
d
ju
s
tm
e
n
t 
a
n
d
 

a
d
d
it
io
n
a
l 
lo
c
a
l 

a
d
ju
s
tm
e
n
t 
if
 t
h
e
y
 h
a
v
e
 

re
p
re
s
e
n
ta
ti
o
n
 o
n
 

s
c
h
o
o
ls
 f
o
ru
m
. 

F
u
rt
h
e
r 
g
u
id
a
n
c
e
 w
ill
 b
e
 

p
u
b
lis
h
e
d
 i
n
 a
u
tu
m
n
 2
0
0
8
. 

Page 24



 

R
e
c
o
m
m
e
n
d
a
ti
o
n
s
 

 
A
c
ti
o
n
s
 p
ro
p
o
s
e
d
 

R
e
s
p
o
n
s
ib
il
it
y
 

T
im
e
s
c
a
le
 

P
ro
g
re
s
s
 

R
e
c
o
m
m
e
n
d
a
ti
o
n
 6
 

T
h
a
t 
E
d
u
c
a
ti
o
n
 
L
e
e
d
s
 
a
n
d
 

th
e
 

P
ri
n
c
ip
a
l 

S
c
ru
ti
n
y
 

A
d
v
is
e
r 

d
e
v
is
e
 

a
n
 

a
p
p
ro
p
ri
a
te
 
fr
a
m
e
w
o
rk
 
fo
r 

th
e
 

S
c
ru
ti
n
y
 

B
o
a
rd
 

to
 

m
o
n
it
o
r 
im
p
le
m
e
n
ta
ti
o
n
 
o
f 

th
e
 

L
e
e
d
s
 

In
c
lu
s
iv
e
 

L
e
a
rn
in
g
 
S
tr
a
te
g
y
 
d
u
ri
n
g
 

2
0
0
8
/0
9
. 

 

A
 P
ro
g
ra
m
m
e
 B
o
a
rd
 h
a
s
 b
e
e
n
 

e
s
ta
b
lis
h
e
d
 t
h
a
t 
 m
e
e
ts
 r
e
g
u
la
rl
y
  
to
 

m
o
n
it
o
r,
 e
v
a
lu
a
te
 a
n
d
 p
ro
v
id
e
 s
tr
a
te
g
ic
 

d
ir
e
c
ti
o
n
 r
e
g
a
rd
in
g
 t
h
e
 p
ro
g
re
s
s
 o
f 
L
IL
s
. 
 

 U
p
d
a
te
s
 t
o
 S
c
ru
ti
n
y
 B
o
a
rd
 w
ill
 b
e
 

p
ro
v
id
e
d
 a
s
 a
p
p
ro
p
ri
a
te
 f
o
llo
w
in
g
 

d
e
c
is
io
n
 o
u
tc
o
m
e
s
 d
ir
e
c
te
d
 b
y
 t
h
e
 B
o
a
rd
. 

 T
h
e
s
e
 w
ill
 b
e
 i
n
c
o
rp
o
ra
te
d
 i
n
to
 t
h
e
 

B
o
a
rd
’s
 q
u
a
rt
e
rl
y
 o
v
e
rv
ie
w
 a
n
d
 

p
e
rf
o
rm
a
n
c
e
 m
o
n
it
o
ri
n
g
 c
y
c
le
. 
 

C
a
ro
l 
J
o
rd
a
n
 

2
0
0
8
-2
0
0
9
 

T
h
e
 P
ro
g
ra
m
m
e
 B
o
a
rd
 h
a
s
 

b
e
e
n
 o
p
e
ra
ti
n
g
 o
v
e
r 
th
e
 l
a
s
t 

tw
e
lv
e
 m
o
n
th
s
. 
F
o
llo
w
in
g
 

e
v
a
lu
a
ti
o
n
 i
t 
h
a
s
 b
e
e
n
 a
g
re
e
d
 

to
 w
id
e
n
 t
h
e
 m
e
m
b
e
rs
h
ip
 o
f 

th
e
 B
o
a
rd
 t
o
 i
n
c
lu
d
e
 k
e
y
 

p
a
rt
n
e
rs
 a
n
d
 t
o
 e
n
s
u
re
 

s
y
n
e
rg
y
 i
n
 d
e
c
is
io
n
 m
a
k
in
g
 

p
ro
c
e
s
s
e
s
 w
it
h
 t
h
e
 1
4
+
 

a
g
e
n
d
a
 a
n
d
 t
h
e
 d
e
v
e
lo
p
in
g
 

d
is
a
b
ili
ty
 s
tr
a
te
g
y
. 

 

 

Page 25



Page 26

This page is intentionally left blank



 
Report of the Head of Scrutiny and Member Development 
 
Scrutiny Board (Children’s Services) 
 
Date: 17 July 2008 
 
Subject: Recommendation Tracking 
 

        
 
 
1.0 Introduction 
 
1.1 Last year Overview and Scrutiny Committee agreed to adopt a new, more formal 

system of recommendation tracking, to ensure that scrutiny recommendations were 
more rigorously followed through. 

 
1.2 As a result, each Scrutiny Board now receives a quarterly report on any 

recommendations from previous inquiries which have not yet been completed.  
 
1.3 This will allow the board to monitor progress and identify completed 

recommendations; those progressing to plan; and those where there is either an 
obstacle or progress is not adequate. The board will then be able to take further action 
as appropriate. 

 
1.4 A standard set of criteria has been produced, to enable the board to assess progress. 

These are presented in the form of a flow chart at Appendix 1. The questions should 
help to decide whether a recommendation has been completed, and if not whether 
further action is required. 

 
1.5 For each outstanding recommendation, a progress update is provided. In some cases 

there will be several updates, as the board has monitored progress over a period of 
time. 

 
1.6 To assist members, the Principal Scrutiny Adviser has given a draft status for each 

recommendation. The board is asked to confirm whether these assessments are 
appropriate, and to change them where they are not.  

 

Specific Implications For:  

 
Equality and Diversity 
  
Community Cohesion 
 
Narrowing the Gap 

Electoral Wards Affected:  

 
 

 

 

Originator: Kate Arscott 
 
Tel: 247 4189 

Agenda Item 8

Page 27



1.7 In particular, members should note that a number of recommendations have a draft 
status of 4 or 5. For these recommendations, the Principal Scrutiny Adviser suggests 
that progress has been made. However, the decision as to whether this progress is 
acceptable is a judgement for board members to make. 

 
1.8 In deciding whether to undertake any further work, members will need to consider the 

balance of the board’s work programme. 
 
2.0 Next Steps 
 
2.1 The next cycle of quarterly recommendation tracking reports will be presented to 

Scrutiny Boards in October 2008, enabling the Board to judge progress against 
outstanding recommendations. 

 
2.2 Elsewhere on this agenda, the board is considering a formal response to the 

statement on Inclusion, published in April 2008. Any recommendations which require 
ongoing action will be added to this report for the next cycle of recommendation 
tracking.  

 
3.0 Recommendations 
 
3.1 Members are asked to: 
 

• Agree those recommendations which no longer require monitoring; 
 

• Identify any recommendations where progress is unsatisfactory and determine the 
action the board wishes to take as a result. 

 
 

Page 28



No Yes

1 - Stop 

monitoring

Yes No

Yes No

Yes No

Yes No

Is this recommendation still relevant?

Recommendation tracking flowchart and classifications:

Questions to be Considered by Scrutiny Boards

5 - Not achieved 

(progress made not 

acceptable. Scrutiny 

Board to determine 

appropriate action and 

continue monitoring)

Has the recommendation been 

achieved?

3 - not achieved 

(obstacle). Scrutiny 

Board to determine 

appropriate action.

Is progress 

acceptable?

4 - Not 

achieved

(Progress

made

acceptable.

Continue

monitoring.)

6 - Not for review this 

session

Has the set 

timescale

passed?

2 - Achieved 

Is there an 

obstacle?

Page 29



Page 30

This page is intentionally left blank



A
d
o
p
ti
o
n
 i
n
 L
e
e
d
s
  

 
R
e
p
o
rt
 p
u
b
li
s
h
e
d
 M
a
rc
h
 2
0
0
7
 
 

 
 

 
L
a
s
t 
u
p
d
a
te
 r
e
c
e
iv
e
d
 J
u
ly
 2
0
0
8
 

  
R
e
c
o
m
m
e
n
d
a
ti
o
n
 

 
W
h
e
re
 w
e
 a
re
 u
p
 t
o
  

S
ta
g
e
 

C
o
m
p
le
te
 

2
 

W
e
 r
e
c
o
m
m
e
n
d
 t
h
a
t 
th
e
 

D
ir
e
c
to
r 
o
f 
S
o
c
ia
l 
S
e
rv
ic
e
s
 

re
p
o
rt
s
 b
a
c
k
 t
o
 u
s
 w
it
h
in
 t
h
re
e
 

m
o
n
th
s
 o
n
 a
c
ti
o
n
 t
h
a
t 
w
il
l 
b
e
 

ta
k
e
n
 t
o
 r
e
d
u
c
e
 a
d
m
in
is
tr
a
ti
v
e
 

d
e
la
y
s
 i
n
 t
h
e
 a
d
o
p
ti
o
n
 p
ro
c
e
s
s
 

 

J
u
ly
 2
0
0
7
 p
o
s
it
io
n
 

R
e
c
o
m
m
e
n
d
a
ti
o
n
s
 f
o
r 
a
d
m
in
is
tr
a
ti
v
e
 s
u
p
p
o
rt
 t
o
 t
h
e
 F
o
s
te
ri
n
g
 &
 A
d
o
p
ti
o
n
 S
e
rv
ic
e
 

w
ill
 a
ri
s
e
 o
u
t 
o
f 
th
e
 f
u
ll 
re
v
ie
w
 o
f 
th
e
 s
e
rv
ic
e
  

T
im
e
s
c
a
le
: 
O
c
to
b
e
r 
2
0
0
7
 

O
c
to
b
e
r 
2
0
0
7
 u
p
d
a
te
 

T
h
e
 t
im
e
s
c
a
le
 f
o
r 
th
e
 r
e
v
ie
w
 t
o
 b
e
 c
o
m
p
le
te
d
 i
s
 n
o
w
 J
a
n
u
a
ry
 2
0
0
8
. 
A
n
 a
d
d
it
io
n
a
l 

te
m
p
o
ra
ry
 p
o
s
t 
h
a
s
 b
e
e
n
 a
g
re
e
d
 i
n
 t
h
e
 i
n
te
ri
m
. 

J
a
n
u
a
ry
 2
0
0
8
 u
p
d
a
te
 

T
h
e
 t
im
e
s
c
a
le
 f
o
r 
c
o
m
p
le
ti
o
n
 o
f 
th
e
 r
e
v
ie
w
 i
s
 n
o
w
 M
a
rc
h
 2
0
0
8
. 

 J
u
ly
 2
0
0
8
 U
p
d
a
te
 

In
 o
rd
e
r 
to
 a
c
h
ie
v
e
 t
h
is
 r
e
c
o
m
m
e
n
d
a
ti
o
n
 t
h
e
re
 i
s
 n
o
w
 a
 d
e
d
ic
a
te
d
 a
d
o
p
ti
o
n
 

p
a
n
e
l 
c
o
-o
rd
in
a
to
r.
  
A
 n
e
w
 h
e
a
d
 o
f 
s
u
p
p
o
rt
 s
e
rv
ic
e
s
 r
e
v
ie
w
e
d
 p
ro
c
e
s
s
e
s
, 

s
tr
e
a
m
li
n
e
d
 a
d
m
in
is
tr
a
ti
o
n
 a
n
d
 i
s
 w
o
rk
in
g
 w
it
h
 t
h
e
 E
le
c
tr
o
n
ic
 S
o
c
ia
l 
C
a
re
 

R
e
c
o
rd
 (
E
S
C
R
) 
te
a
m
 t
o
 i
m
p
le
m
e
n
t 
e
le
c
tr
o
n
ic
 r
e
c
o
rd
 k
e
e
p
in
g
. 
 

2
 

(A
c
h
ie
v
e
d
)  

ü üüü
 

3
 

W
e
 r
e
c
o
m
m
e
n
d
 t
h
a
t 
th
e
 

D
ir
e
c
to
r 
o
f 
S
o
c
ia
l 
S
e
rv
ic
e
s
 

c
o
n
s
id
e
rs
 w
h
e
th
e
r 
a
 s
im
il
a
r 

o
rg
a
n
is
a
ti
o
n
a
l 
a
p
p
ro
a
c
h
 t
o
 t
h
a
t 

ta
k
e
n
 i
n
 L
iv
e
rp
o
o
l 
w
o
u
ld
 

b
e
n
e
fi
t 
a
d
o
p
ti
o
n
 i
n
 L
e
e
d
s
, 
a
n
d
 

re
p
o
rt
s
 b
a
c
k
 t
o
 u
s
 w
it
h
 a
 v
ie
w
 

w
it
h
in
 t
h
re
e
 m
o
n
th
s
 

 

J
u
ly
 2
0
0
7
 p
o
s
it
io
n
 

T
h
is
 p
ro
p
o
s
a
l 
w
ill
 b
e
 c
o
n
s
id
e
re
d
 a
s
 p
a
rt
 o
f 
th
e
 f
u
ll 
re
v
ie
w
 o
f 
th
e
 s
e
rv
ic
e
 a
s
 i
t 

re
p
re
s
e
n
ts
 a
 s
ig
n
if
ic
a
n
t 
c
h
a
n
g
e
 t
o
 c
u
rr
e
n
t 
p
ra
c
ti
c
e
 a
n
d
 h
a
s
 b
u
d
g
e
ta
ry
 

im
p
lic
a
ti
o
n
s
  

T
im
e
s
c
a
le
: 
O
c
to
b
e
r 
2
0
0
7
 

O
c
to
b
e
r 
2
0
0
7
 u
p
d
a
te
 

T
h
e
 t
im
e
s
c
a
le
 f
o
r 
th
e
 r
e
v
ie
w
 t
o
 b
e
 c
o
m
p
le
te
d
 i
s
 n
o
w
 J
a
n
u
a
ry
 2
0
0
8
. 

J
a
n
u
a
ry
 2
0
0
8
 u
p
d
a
te
 

T
h
e
 t
im
e
s
c
a
le
 f
o
r 
c
o
m
p
le
ti
o
n
 o
f 
th
e
 r
e
v
ie
w
 i
s
 n
o
w
 M
a
rc
h
 2
0
0
8
. 

 J
u
ly
 2
0
0
8
 U
p
d
a
te
  

T
h
e
 L
iv
e
rp
o
o
l 
m
o
d
e
l 
h
a
s
 b
e
e
n
 c
o
n
s
id
e
re
d
 a
n
d
 r
e
je
c
te
d
 o
n
 t
h
e
 b
a
s
is
 t
h
a
t 

th
e
 b
e
n
e
fi
ts
 f
ro
m
 t
h
a
t 
a
p
p
ro
a
c
h
 c
a
n
 b
e
 a
c
h
ie
v
e
d
 b
y
 o
th
e
r 
m
e
a
n
s
 i
n
 L
e
e
d
s
. 
 

S
p
e
c
if
ic
a
ll
y
, 
L
e
e
d
s
 h
a
s
 i
n
s
te
a
d
 i
n
v
e
s
te
d
 i
n
 3
 a
d
d
it
io
n
a
l 
fo
s
te
ri
n
g
 o
ff
ic
e
rs
 t
o
 

h
e
lp
 s
h
o
rt
e
n
 t
h
e
 t
im
e
s
c
a
le
 f
o
r 
a
s
s
e
s
s
m
e
n
ts
 –
 a
 k
e
y
 p
ri
o
ri
ty
 f
o
r 
th
e
 s
e
rv
ic
e
. 

 

2
 

(A
c
h
ie
v
e
d
)  

ü üüü
 

Page 31



A
d
o
p
ti
o
n
 i
n
 L
e
e
d
s
  

 
R
e
p
o
rt
 p
u
b
li
s
h
e
d
 M
a
rc
h
 2
0
0
7
 
 

 
 

 
L
a
s
t 
u
p
d
a
te
 r
e
c
e
iv
e
d
 J
u
ly
 2
0
0
8
 

  
R
e
c
o
m
m
e
n
d
a
ti
o
n
 

 
W
h
e
re
 w
e
 a
re
 u
p
 t
o
  

S
ta
g
e
 

C
o
m
p
le
te
 

  
9
 
W
e
 r
e
c
o
m
m
e
n
d
 t
h
a
t 
th
e
 

D
ir
e
c
to
r 
o
f 
S
o
c
ia
l 
S
e
rv
ic
e
s
 

c
o
m
m
is
s
io
n
s
 a
p
p
ro
p
ri
a
te
 

a
c
ti
v
it
y
 t
o
 r
a
is
e
 g
e
n
e
ra
l 

a
w
a
re
n
e
s
s
 o
f 
th
e
 r
a
n
g
e
 o
f 

p
e
o
p
le
 w
h
o
 c
a
n
 a
d
o
p
t 
c
h
il
d
re
n
 

a
n
d
 r
e
p
o
rt
s
 b
a
c
k
 t
o
 u
s
 o
n
 

in
it
ia
ti
v
e
s
 p
ro
p
o
s
e
d
 w
it
h
in
 

th
re
e
 m
o
n
th
s
 

 

J
u
ly
 2
0
0
7
 p
o
s
it
io
n
 

C
o
n
s
id
e
ra
ti
o
n
 w
ill
 b
e
 g
iv
e
n
 t
o
 i
n
c
re
a
s
in
g
 t
h
e
 r
e
c
ru
it
m
e
n
t 
b
u
d
g
e
t.
 T
h
e
 c
u
rr
e
n
t 

b
u
d
g
e
t 
h
a
s
 n
o
t 
b
e
e
n
 i
n
c
re
a
s
e
d
 f
o
r 
s
e
v
e
ra
l 
y
e
a
rs
 a
n
d
 i
s
 p
ro
b
a
b
ly
 i
n
s
u
ff
ic
ie
n
t.
 

T
h
e
 s
e
rv
ic
e
 r
e
v
ie
w
 w
ill
 r
e
p
o
rt
 o
n
 t
h
is
 a
n
d
 m
a
k
e
 r
e
c
o
m
m
e
n
d
a
ti
o
n
s
. 

T
im
e
s
c
a
le
: 
A
p
ri
l 
 2
0
0
8
 

 C
o
n
ti
n
u
e
 c
u
rr
e
n
t 
in
v
o
lv
e
m
e
n
t 
w
it
h
 t
h
e
 A
d
o
p
ti
o
n
 C
o
n
s
o
rt
iu
m
 o
n
 r
a
is
in
g
 

a
w
a
re
n
e
s
s
 a
b
o
u
t 
a
d
o
p
ti
o
n
 a
t 
a
 r
e
g
io
n
a
l 
le
v
e
l 
p
a
rt
ic
u
la
rl
y
 a
b
o
u
t 
B
M
E
 c
h
ild
re
n
 

n
e
e
d
in
g
 a
d
o
p
ti
o
n
 

 O
c
to
b
e
r 
2
0
0
7
 u
p
d
a
te
 

A
 r
e
g
io
n
a
l 
a
p
p
ro
a
c
h
 t
o
 t
h
e
 r
e
c
ru
it
m
e
n
t 
o
f 
B
M
E
 a
d
o
p
te
rs
 a
n
d
 a
w
a
re
n
e
s
s
 r
a
is
in
g
 

is
 n
o
w
 t
a
k
in
g
 p
la
c
e
. 

 J
u
ly
 2
0
0
8
 u
p
d
a
te
 

A
 r
e
c
ru
it
m
e
n
t 
s
tr
a
te
g
y
 i
s
 i
n
 p
la
c
e
 t
o
 g
u
id
e
 w
o
rk
 o
n
 r
a
is
in
g
 a
w
a
re
n
e
s
s
 

a
ro
u
n
d
 a
d
o
p
ti
o
n
s
; 
th
is
 a
d
v
o
c
a
te
s
 w
o
rk
 b
o
th
 l
o
c
a
ll
y
 a
n
d
 r
e
g
io
n
a
ll
y
. 

 F
u
rt
h
e
r 
to
 t
h
e
 J
u
ly
 2
0
0
7
 p
o
s
it
io
n
, 
th
e
 l
o
c
a
l 
re
c
ru
it
m
e
n
t 
b
u
d
g
e
t 
h
a
s
 n
o
t 

b
e
e
n
 i
n
c
re
a
s
e
d
. 
H
o
w
e
v
e
r 
th
e
re
 h
a
s
 b
e
e
n
 g
re
a
te
r 
in
v
e
s
tm
e
n
t 
in
 e
n
g
a
g
in
g
 

w
it
h
 t
h
e
 r
e
g
io
n
a
l 
c
o
n
s
o
rt
iu
m
 t
o
 r
a
is
e
 t
h
e
 p
ro
fi
le
 o
f 
a
d
o
p
ti
n
g
 L
e
e
d
s
 c
h
il
d
re
n
 

a
c
ro
s
s
 t
h
e
 r
e
g
io
n
, 
w
h
ic
h
 b
ri
n
g
s
 n
e
t 
g
a
in
s
 f
o
r 
th
e
 c
it
y
. 

 S
o
m
e
 s
p
e
c
if
ic
 e
x
a
m
p
le
s
 o
f 
re
c
e
n
t 
p
o
s
it
iv
e
 r
e
c
ru
it
m
e
n
t 
a
c
ti
v
it
y
 i
n
c
lu
d
e
: 

- 
A
d
o
p
ti
o
n
 w
e
e
k
 i
n
 N
o
v
e
m
b
e
r 
2
0
0
7
  

- 
T
w
o
 N
a
ti
o
n
a
l 
A
d
o
p
ti
o
n
 R
e
g
is
te
r 
e
x
c
h
a
n
g
e
 d
a
y
s
 t
o
 b
ri
n
g
 a
g
e
n
c
ie
s
 

to
g
e
th
e
r 
to
 p
ro
fi
le
 t
h
o
s
e
 n
e
e
d
in
g
 a
d
o
p
ti
o
n
 t
o
 t
a
rg
e
t 
o
u
r 
e
ff
o
rt
s
 t
o
 w
h
e
re
 

th
e
y
 a
re
 n
e
e
d
e
d
 m
o
s
t;
  

- 
A
 r
a
n
g
e
 o
f 
ta
rg
e
te
d
 l
o
c
a
l 
a
c
ti
v
it
y
 i
n
c
lu
d
in
g
 a
 B
e
e
s
to
n
 m
a
il
o
u
t;
 

C
h
a
p
e
lt
o
w
n
 C
a
rn
iv
a
l;
  

- 
E
x
te
n
d
in
g
 t
h
e
 w
e
b
s
it
e
 t
o
 l
in
k
 w
it
h
 n
a
ti
o
n
a
l 
a
d
o
p
ti
o
n
 a
g
e
n
c
ie
s
. 
 

 

2
 

(A
c
h
ie
v
e
d
) 

ü üüü
 

Page 32



A
d
o
p
ti
o
n
 i
n
 L
e
e
d
s
  

 
R
e
p
o
rt
 p
u
b
li
s
h
e
d
 M
a
rc
h
 2
0
0
7
 
 

 
 

 
L
a
s
t 
u
p
d
a
te
 r
e
c
e
iv
e
d
 J
u
ly
 2
0
0
8
 

  
R
e
c
o
m
m
e
n
d
a
ti
o
n
 

 
W
h
e
re
 w
e
 a
re
 u
p
 t
o
  

S
ta
g
e
 

C
o
m
p
le
te
 

1
2
 
W
e
 r
e
c
o
m
m
e
n
d
 t
h
a
t 
th
e
 

D
ir
e
c
to
r 
o
f 
C
h
il
d
re
n
’s
 S
e
rv
ic
e
s
 

c
o
n
s
id
e
rs
 t
h
e
 a
p
p
o
in
tm
e
n
t 
o
f 

a
n
 i
n
d
e
p
e
n
d
e
n
t 
re
v
ie
w
in
g
 

o
ff
ic
e
r 
fo
r 
a
d
o
p
ti
o
n
, 
a
n
d
 

re
p
o
rt
s
 b
a
c
k
 t
o
 u
s
 w
it
h
 a
 v
ie
w
 

w
it
h
in
 t
h
re
e
 m
o
n
th
s
 

 

J
u
ly
 2
0
0
7
 p
o
s
it
io
n
 

T
h
e
 m
a
n
a
g
e
r 
o
f 
th
e
 I
n
d
e
p
e
n
d
e
n
t 
R
e
v
ie
w
in
g
 O
ff
ic
e
rs
 w
ill
 c
o
n
s
id
e
r 
th
is
 p
ro
p
o
s
a
l 

a
n
d
 m
a
k
e
 r
e
c
o
m
m
e
n
d
a
ti
o
n
s
. 
 

T
im
e
s
c
a
le
: 
J
u
ly
 2
0
0
7
 

 O
c
to
b
e
r 
2
0
0
7
 u
p
d
a
te
 

A
 r
e
v
ie
w
 o
f 
th
e
 r
e
v
ie
w
in
g
 s
e
rv
ic
e
 i
s
 u
n
d
e
rw
a
y
 a
n
d
 t
h
e
 m

a
n
a
g
e
r 
h
a
s
 b
e
e
n
 m
a
d
e
 

a
w
a
re
 o
f 
th
is
 p
ro
p
o
s
a
l.
 

 J
a
n
u
a
ry
 2
0
0
8
 u
p
d
a
te
 

T
h
is
 i
s
s
u
e
 i
s
 b
e
in
g
 l
o
o
k
e
d
 a
t 
a
s
 p
a
rt
 o
f 
th
e
 g
e
n
e
ra
l 
re
v
ie
w
 a
n
d
 r
e
s
tr
u
c
tu
ri
n
g
 o
f 

th
e
 a
d
o
p
ti
o
n
 a
n
d
 f
o
s
te
ri
n
g
 s
e
c
ti
o
n
 a
n
d
 i
s
 n
o
t 
d
u
e
 t
o
 b
e
 c
o
m
p
le
te
 u
n
ti
l 
th
e
 e
n
d
 o
f 

M
a
rc
h
. 

 J
u
ly
 2
0
0
8
 U
p
d
a
te
 

A
n
 i
n
d
e
p
e
n
d
e
n
t 
re
v
ie
w
in
g
 o
ff
ic
e
r 
fo
r 
a
d
o
p
ti
o
n
s
 h
a
s
 b
e
e
n
 c
o
n
s
id
e
re
d
, 
b
u
t 
it
 

h
a
s
 n
o
t 
b
e
e
n
 i
n
tr
o
d
u
c
e
d
. 
T
h
is
 i
s
 b
a
s
e
d
 o
n
 t
w
o
 k
e
y
 f
a
c
to
rs
: 

- 
th
e
 v
ie
w
 f
ro
m
 t
h
e
 e
x
is
ti
n
g
 t
e
a
m
 t
h
a
t 
in
tr
o
d
u
c
in
g
 a
n
 i
n
d
e
p
e
n
d
e
n
t 

re
v
ie
w
in
g
 o
ff
ic
e
r 
p
a
rt
 w
a
y
 t
h
ro
u
g
h
 t
h
e
 a
d
o
p
ti
o
n
 p
ro
c
e
s
s
 w
o
u
ld
 

p
o
te
n
ti
a
ll
y
 m
e
a
n
 l
o
s
in
g
 t
h
e
 k
n
o
w
le
d
g
e
 a
n
d
 c
o
n
ti
n
u
it
y
 e
s
ta
b
li
s
h
e
d
 

th
ro
u
g
h
 t
h
e
 e
a
rl
y
 s
ta
g
e
s
 o
f 
c
a
s
e
s
. 

- 
In
v
e
s
tm
e
n
t 
in
 r
e
v
ie
w
in
g
 o
ff
ic
e
rs
 h
a
s
 i
n
s
te
a
d
 f
o
c
u
s
e
d
 o
n
 t
a
rg
e
ti
n
g
 w
o
rk
 

to
 h
e
lp
 i
m
p
ro
v
e
 p
e
rf
o
rm

a
n
c
e
 a
g
a
in
s
t 
s
ta
tu
to
ry
 k
e
y
 p
e
rf
o
rm

a
n
c
e
 

in
d
ic
a
to
rs
. 
 

2
 

(A
c
h
ie
v
e
d
) 

ü üüü
 

Page 33



A
d
o
p
ti
o
n
 i
n
 L
e
e
d
s
  

 
R
e
p
o
rt
 p
u
b
li
s
h
e
d
 M
a
rc
h
 2
0
0
7
 
 

 
 

 
L
a
s
t 
u
p
d
a
te
 r
e
c
e
iv
e
d
 J
u
ly
 2
0
0
8
 

  
R
e
c
o
m
m
e
n
d
a
ti
o
n
 

 
W
h
e
re
 w
e
 a
re
 u
p
 t
o
  

S
ta
g
e
 

C
o
m
p
le
te
 

1
3
 
W
e
 r
e
c
o
m
m
e
n
d
 t
h
a
t 
th
e
 

D
ir
e
c
to
r 
o
f 
S
o
c
ia
l 
S
e
rv
ic
e
s
 a
n
d
 

th
e
 C
h
ie
f 
E
x
e
c
u
ti
v
e
 o
f 

E
d
u
c
a
ti
o
n
 L
e
e
d
s
 p
ro
d
u
c
e
 a
n
 

a
c
ti
o
n
 p
la
n
 w
it
h
in
 t
h
re
e
 

m
o
n
th
s
 f
o
r 
im
p
ro
v
in
g
 t
h
e
 

e
d
u
c
a
ti
o
n
 s
u
p
p
o
rt
 t
o
 a
d
o
p
te
d
 

c
h
il
d
re
n
, 
in
 o
rd
e
r 
to
 e
n
s
u
re
 a
 

m
o
re
 c
o
n
s
is
te
n
t 
q
u
a
li
ty
 o
f 

e
x
p
e
ri
e
n
c
e
 f
o
r 
a
d
o
p
ti
v
e
 

fa
m
il
ie
s
. 
T
h
is
 s
h
o
u
ld
 c
o
v
e
r 

a
w
a
re
n
e
s
s
 r
a
is
in
g
 f
o
r 
s
c
h
o
o
ls
; 

s
o
c
ia
l 
s
e
rv
ic
e
s
 s
ta
ff
 a
w
a
re
n
e
s
s
 

o
f 
e
d
u
c
a
ti
o
n
 r
e
s
o
u
rc
e
s
; 
a
n
d
 

p
a
re
n
ta
l 
a
w
a
re
n
e
s
s
 o
f 

e
d
u
c
a
ti
o
n
 s
u
p
p
o
rt
 p
a
rt
ic
u
la
rl
y
 

fo
r 
s
p
e
c
ia
l 
e
d
u
c
a
ti
o
n
a
l 
n
e
e
d
s
. 

 

J
u
ly
 2
0
0
7
 p
o
s
it
io
n
 

T
h
e
re
 i
s
 a
 p
ie
c
e
 o
f 
w
o
rk
 c
u
rr
e
n
tl
y
 b
e
in
g
 u
n
d
e
rt
a
k
e
n
 t
o
 d
e
v
e
lo
p
 p
ra
c
ti
c
e
 i
n
 

re
s
p
e
c
t 
o
f 
th
e
 e
d
u
c
a
ti
o
n
 o
f 
lo
o
k
e
d
 a
ft
e
r 
c
h
ild
re
n
. 
T
h
e
 p
ro
p
o
s
a
ls
 r
e
g
a
rd
in
g
 t
h
e
 

e
d
u
c
a
ti
o
n
 o
f 
a
d
o
p
te
d
 c
h
ild
re
n
 w
ill
 b
e
 s
im
ila
rl
y
 c
o
n
s
id
e
re
d
 a
n
d
 a
d
d
e
d
 t
o
 t
h
e
 

c
u
rr
e
n
t 
p
ie
c
e
 o
f 
w
o
rk
. 
 

T
im
e
s
c
a
le
: 
A
p
ri
l 
2
0
0
8
 

 O
c
to
b
e
r 
2
0
0
7
 u
p
d
a
te
 

A
 ‘
v
ir
tu
a
l 
h
e
a
d
te
a
c
h
e
r’
 f
o
r 
lo
o
k
e
d
 a
ft
e
r 
c
h
ild
re
n
 h
a
s
 b
e
e
n
 a
p
p
o
in
te
d
 a
n
d
 w
ill
 

c
o
n
s
id
e
r 
th
is
 a
s
 p
a
rt
 o
f 
h
is
 b
ri
e
f.
 

 J
u
ly
 2
0
0
8
 

W
o
rk
 t
o
 i
m
p
ro
v
e
 e
d
u
c
a
ti
o
n
 s
u
p
p
o
rt
 t
o
 a
d
o
p
te
d
 c
h
il
d
re
n
 i
s
 o
n
g
o
in
g
. 
A
t 

p
re
s
e
n
t 
th
is
 h
a
s
 n
o
t 
b
e
e
n
 a
ll
o
c
a
te
d
 a
s
 a
 k
e
y
 r
e
s
p
o
n
s
ib
il
it
y
 o
f 
th
e
 ‘
v
ir
tu
a
l 

h
e
a
d
te
a
c
h
e
r’
, 
e
n
a
b
li
n
g
 h
im
 t
o
 f
o
c
u
s
 s
p
e
c
if
ic
a
ll
y
 o
n
 l
o
o
k
e
d
 a
ft
e
r 
c
h
il
d
re
n
. 
 

 H
o
w
e
v
e
r,
 w
o
rk
 t
o
 i
n
te
g
ra
te
 t
h
e
 s
h
a
re
d
 r
e
s
p
o
n
s
ib
il
it
ie
s
 o
f 
c
h
il
d
re
n
 a
n
d
 

y
o
u
n
g
 p
e
o
p
le
’s
 s
o
c
ia
l 
c
a
re
 w
it
h
 s
c
h
o
o
ls
 i
s
 d
e
v
e
lo
p
in
g
, 
re
s
u
lt
in
g
 i
n
 b
e
tt
e
r 

m
u
tu
a
l 
u
n
d
e
rs
ta
n
d
in
g
 a
n
d
 m
o
re
 t
a
rg
e
te
d
 s
u
p
p
o
rt
 t
o
 t
h
o
s
e
 y
o
u
n
g
 p
e
o
p
le
 

w
it
h
 p
a
rt
ic
u
la
r 
n
e
e
d
s
, 
in
c
lu
d
in
g
 a
d
o
p
te
d
 c
h
il
d
re
n
. 

 F
o
r 
e
x
a
m
p
le
: 

- 
 s
u
p
p
o
rt
 s
ta
ff
 r
e
g
u
la
rl
y
 g
o
 i
n
to
 s
c
h
o
o
ls
 t
o
 o
b
s
e
rv
e
, 
p
la
n
 a
n
d
 p
ro
v
id
e
 

tr
a
in
in
g
 f
o
r 
th
e
 s
c
h
o
o
l 
in
 r
e
la
ti
o
n
 t
o
 i
n
d
iv
id
u
a
l 
c
h
il
d
re
n
  

- 
T
h
e
ra
p
la
y
 i
s
 u
s
e
d
 i
n
 s
c
h
o
o
ls
 

- 
m
e
n
to
ri
n
g
 p
ro
g
ra
m
m
e
 f
o
r 
lo
o
k
e
d
 a
ft
e
r 
c
h
il
d
re
n
 s
u
c
c
e
s
s
fu
ll
y
 u
s
e
d
 w
it
h
 

a
n
 e
x
c
lu
d
e
d
 a
d
o
p
te
d
 c
h
il
d
 

- 
a
n
n
u
a
l 
m
u
lt
i-
a
g
e
n
c
y
 t
ra
in
in
g
 (
in
c
lu
d
in
g
 C
A
M
H
S
) 
is
 o
ff
e
re
d
 f
re
e
 t
o
 

s
c
h
o
o
ls
 

- 
o
n
g
o
in
g
 s
u
p
p
o
rt
 f
o
r 
a
d
o
p
ti
v
e
 p
a
re
n
ts
 f
ro
m
 E
d
u
c
a
ti
o
n
 S
u
p
p
o
rt
 W

o
rk
e
r 

 

2
 

(A
c
h
ie
v
e
d
) 

ü üüü
 

 

Page 34



 T
h
e
 I
m
p
li
c
a
ti
o
n
s
 o
f 
T
ru
s
t 
S
c
h
o
o
ls
 f
o
r 
th
e
 L
o
c
a
l 
A
u
th
o
ri
ty
 

R
e
p
o
rt
 p
u
b
li
s
h
e
d
 M
a
y
 2
0
0
7
  

  
  
 L
a
s
t 
u
p
d
a
te
 r
e
c
e
iv
e
d
 J
u
ly
 2
0
0
8
 

  
R
e
c
o
m
m
e
n
d
a
ti
o
n
 

 

W
h
e
re
 w
e
 a
re
 u
p
 t
o
  

S
ta
g
e
 

C
o
m
p
le
te
 

3
 

T
h
a
t 
th
e
 D
ir
e
c
to
r 
o
f 
C
h
il
d
re
n
’s
 S
e
rv
ic
e
s
 

h
a
s
 r
e
g
a
rd
 t
o
 t
h
is
 r
e
p
o
rt
 w
h
e
n
 

re
s
p
o
n
d
in
g
 t
o
 a
n
y
 s
c
h
o
o
l 
c
o
n
s
u
lt
in
g
 o
n
 

b
e
c
o
m
in
g
 a
 T
ru
s
t 
S
c
h
o
o
l.
  

 In
 p
a
rt
ic
u
la
r 
th
e
 p
o
in
ts
 r
a
is
e
d
 i
n
 t
h
is
 

re
p
o
rt
 r
e
g
a
rd
in
g
 

•
 
p
ro
p
o
s
e
d
 p
a
rt
n
e
r 
o
rg
a
n
is
a
ti
o
n
s
 

s
h
a
ri
n
g
 t
h
e
 s
a
m
e
 v
is
io
n
 f
o
r 
th
e
 

s
c
h
o
o
l 

•
 
a
n
y
 p
ro
p
o
s
e
d
 c
h
a
n
g
e
s
 t
o
 t
h
e
 

s
c
h
o
o
l’
s
 a
d
m
is
s
io
n
s
 p
o
li
c
y
 

•
 
p
o
te
n
ti
a
l 
fo
r 
th
e
 p
ro
p
o
s
a
ls
 t
o
 h
e
lp
 

o
r 
h
in
d
e
r 
“
n
a
rr
o
w
in
g
 t
h
e
 g
a
p
”
 

•
 
b
a
la
n
c
e
 o
f 
tr
u
s
t 
a
p
p
o
in
te
d
 

g
o
v
e
rn
o
rs
 o
n
 t
h
e
 g
o
v
e
rn
in
g
 b
o
d
y
 

 a
n
d
 t
o
 c
o
n
s
id
e
r 
h
o
w
 t
h
e
 i
n
d
iv
id
u
a
l 

p
ro
p
o
s
a
ls
 w
il
l 
c
o
n
tr
ib
u
te
 t
o
 c
o
m
m
u
n
it
y
 

c
o
h
e
s
io
n
 a
n
d
 d
e
li
v
e
ri
n
g
 t
h
e
 E
v
e
ry
 C
h
il
d
 

M
a
tt
e
rs
 a
g
e
n
d
a
. 

O
c
to
b
e
r 
2
0
0
7
 p
o
s
it
io
n
 

C
o
m
m
it
m
e
n
t 
g
iv
e
n
 

 N
o
 f
u
rt
h
e
r 
fo
rm

a
l 
p
ro
p
o
s
a
ls
 r
e
c
e
iv
e
d
 t
o
 d
a
te
 

 J
u
ly
 2
0
0
8
 U
p
d
a
te
 

 A
ll
 o
f 
th
e
 p
o
in
ts
 h
ig
h
li
g
h
te
d
 b
y
 s
c
ru
ti
n
y
 a
re
 n
o
w
 i
n
c
o
rp
o
ra
te
d
 

in
to
 g
u
id
a
n
c
e
 u
s
e
d
 b
y
 E
d
u
c
a
ti
o
n
 L
e
e
d
s
 i
n
 r
e
la
ti
o
n
 t
o
 t
ru
s
t 

s
c
h
o
o
ls
. 
T
h
e
s
e
 p
o
in
ts
 h
a
v
e
 a
ls
o
 h
e
lp
e
d
 t
o
 i
n
fo
rm

 t
h
e
 p
ro
to
c
o
l 
in
 

re
la
ti
o
n
 t
o
 A
c
a
d
e
m
ie
s
. 

 S
in
c
e
 t
h
e
 f
o
rm

a
l 
c
o
n
s
u
lt
a
ti
o
n
s
 o
n
 t
h
e
 S
c
h
o
o
ls
' 
P
a
rt
n
e
rs
h
ip
 T
ru
s
t 

in
 G
a
rf
o
rt
h
, 
n
o
 f
u
rt
h
e
r 
fo
rm

a
l 
c
o
n
s
u
lt
a
ti
o
n
s
 h
a
v
e
 b
e
e
n
 h
e
ld
. 

H
o
w
e
v
e
r,
 g
ro
u
p
s
 o
f 
s
c
h
o
o
ls
 i
n
 O
tl
e
y
, 
M
o
rl
e
y
, 
W
e
th
e
rb
y
, 
P
u
d
s
e
y
 

a
n
d
 B
o
s
to
n
 S
p
a
 h
a
v
e
 h
a
d
 i
n
fo
rm

a
l 
c
o
n
v
e
rs
a
ti
o
n
s
 w
it
h
 E
d
u
c
a
ti
o
n
 

L
e
e
d
s
. 
M
o
re
 f
o
rm

a
l 
re
s
p
o
n
s
e
s
 t
o
 t
h
e
 c
o
n
s
id
e
ra
ti
o
n
s
 s
c
ru
ti
n
y
 h
a
s
 

h
ig
h
li
g
h
te
d
 w
o
u
ld
 b
e
 s
o
u
g
h
t 
d
u
ri
n
g
 a
n
y
 f
o
rm

a
l 
c
o
n
s
u
lt
a
ti
o
n
. 

 

2
 

(A
c
h
ie
v
e
d
) 

ü üüü
 

Page 35



Y
o
u
th
 S
e
rv
ic
e
s
 

 
R
e
p
o
rt
 p
u
b
li
s
h
e
d
 M
a
y
 2
0
0
7
  

 
 

L
a
s
t 
u
p
d
a
te
 r
e
c
e
iv
e
d
 J
u
ly
 2
0
0
8
 

 

 
R
e
c
o
m
m
e
n
d
a
ti
o
n
 

 

W
h
e
re
 w
e
 a
re
 u
p
 t
o
  

S
ta
g
e
 

C
o
m
p
le
te
 

1
 
In
 l
ig
h
t 
o
f 
th
e
 e
v
id
e
n
c
e
 p
re
s
e
n
te
d
 d
u
ri
n
g
 

o
u
r 
in
q
u
ir
y
, 
w
e
 r
e
c
o
m
m
e
n
d
 t
h
a
t 
th
e
 y
o
u
th
 

o
ff
e
r 
fo
r 
L
e
e
d
s
 n
e
e
d
s
 t
o
 a
d
d
re
s
s
 t
h
e
 

fo
ll
o
w
in
g
 k
e
y
 f
in
d
in
g
s
: 

•
 
T
h
e
 n
e
e
d
 f
o
r 
a
 m
o
re
 e
q
u
a
l 
d
is
tr
ib
u
ti
o
n
 

o
f 
u
n
iv
e
rs
a
l 
y
o
u
th
 s
e
rv
ic
e
s
 o
n
 o
ff
e
r 

a
c
ro
s
s
 t
h
e
 c
it
y
 

•
 
T
h
e
 n
e
e
d
 t
o
 i
n
c
lu
d
e
 a
d
v
ic
e
 a
n
d
 

s
ig
n
p
o
s
ti
n
g
 w
it
h
in
 u
n
iv
e
rs
a
l 
p
ro
v
is
io
n
 

•
 
T
h
e
 n
e
e
d
 t
o
 r
e
c
o
g
n
is
e
 t
h
a
t 
s
o
m
e
 

g
ro
u
p
s
 o
f 
y
o
u
n
g
 p
e
o
p
le
 (
fo
r 
e
x
a
m
p
le
 

c
a
re
rs
, 
lo
o
k
e
d
 a
ft
e
r 
c
h
il
d
re
n
 a
n
d
 y
o
u
n
g
 

p
e
o
p
le
 w
it
h
 d
is
a
b
il
it
ie
s
) 
m
a
y
 n
e
e
d
 a
 

d
if
fe
re
n
t 
a
p
p
ro
a
c
h
 o
r 
e
x
tr
a
 a
s
s
is
ta
n
c
e
 

to
 e
n
a
b
le
 t
h
e
m
 t
o
 a
c
c
e
s
s
 t
h
e
 t
y
p
e
s
 o
f 

o
p
p
o
rt
u
n
it
ie
s
 i
n
c
lu
d
e
d
 i
n
 t
h
e
 u
n
iv
e
rs
a
l 

y
o
u
th
 o
ff
e
r 

•
 
T
h
e
 n
e
e
d
 t
o
 r
e
c
o
g
n
is
e
 y
o
u
n
g
 p
e
o
p
le
’s
 

e
x
p
re
s
s
e
d
 d
e
s
ir
e
s
 f
o
r 
v
e
n
u
e
s
 a
n
d
 

s
p
a
c
e
s
 t
o
 u
n
d
e
rt
a
k
e
 t
h
e
ir
 o
w
n
 

(u
n
s
tr
u
c
tu
re
d
) 
a
c
ti
v
it
y
 

•
 
T
h
e
 i
m
p
o
rt
a
n
t 
ro
le
 o
f 
in
te
r-

g
e
n
e
ra
ti
o
n
a
l/
a
ll
 a
g
e
 a
c
ti
v
it
ie
s
 a
s
 w
e
ll
 a
s
 

s
p
e
c
if
ic
 y
o
u
n
g
 p
e
o
p
le
’s
 a
c
ti
v
it
ie
s
 

W
e
 a
s
k
 t
h
e
 D
ir
e
c
to
r 
o
f 
C
h
il
d
re
n
’s
 S
e
rv
ic
e
s
 

to
 r
e
p
o
rt
 t
o
 u
s
 w
it
h
in
 3
 m
o
n
th
s
 o
n
 h
o
w
 

e
a
c
h
 o
f 
th
e
s
e
 i
s
s
u
e
s
 w
il
l 
b
e
 a
d
d
re
s
s
e
d
 i
n
 

th
e
 p
u
b
li
s
h
e
d
 y
o
u
th
 o
ff
e
r.
 

J
a
n
u
a
ry
 2
0
0
8
 u
p
d
a
te
 

9
7
2
 y
o
u
n
g
 p
e
o
p
le
 w
e
re
 c
o
n
s
u
lt
e
d
 d
u
ri
n
g
 t
h
e
 s
u
m
m
e
r 
a
b
o
u
t 
th
e
 

c
o
n
te
n
ts
 o
f 
th
e
 d
ra
ft
 y
o
u
th
 o
ff
e
r.
 T
h
e
 r
e
s
u
lt
s
 l
e
d
 t
o
 t
h
e
 p
ro
d
u
c
ti
o
n
, 
b
y
 

th
e
 Y
o
u
th
 C
o
u
n
c
il 
a
n
d
 R
O
A
R
, 
o
f 
a
n
 e
x
c
e
lle
n
t 
D
V
D
 i
n
tr
o
d
u
c
in
g
 t
h
e
 

B
re
e
z
e
 Y
o
u
th
 P
ro
m
is
e
. 
T
h
e
 c
o
n
s
u
lt
a
ti
o
n
 h
ig
h
lig
h
te
d
 t
h
e
 n
e
e
d
 t
o
 

c
h
a
n
g
e
 s
o
m
e
 e
le
m
e
n
ts
 o
f 
th
e
 y
o
u
th
 o
ff
e
r.
 T
h
is
 i
s
 b
e
in
g
 d
o
n
e
 a
t 

p
re
s
e
n
t,
 m
e
a
n
in
g
 t
h
a
t 
th
e
 B
re
e
z
e
 Y
o
u
th
 P
ro
m
is
e
 c
a
n
 b
e
 f
in
a
lis
e
d
 b
y
 

th
e
 e
n
d
 o
f 
M
a
rc
h
. 
L
e
e
d
s
 i
s
 r
e
c
o
g
n
is
e
d
 n
a
ti
o
n
a
lly
 a
s
 b
e
in
g
 t
h
e
 m
o
s
t 

a
d
v
a
n
c
e
d
 a
u
th
o
ri
ty
 i
n
 t
h
e
 c
o
u
n
tr
y
 r
e
g
a
rd
in
g
 t
h
e
 y
o
u
th
 o
ff
e
r.
 

 J
u
ly
 2
0
0
8
 U
p
d
a
te
 

U
p
d
a
te
s
 h
a
v
e
 p
re
v
io
u
s
ly
 b
e
e
n
 p
ro
v
id
e
d
 a
ro
u
n
d
 w
o
rk
 o
n
 t
h
e
 

s
p
e
c
if
ic
 e
le
m
e
n
ts
 o
f 
th
is
 r
e
c
o
m
m
e
n
d
a
ti
o
n
. 

 T
h
e
 B
re
e
z
e
 Y
o
u
th
 P
ro
m
is
e
 i
s
 n
o
w
 f
in
a
li
s
e
d
 a
n
d
 i
s
 a
w
a
it
in
g
 

im
m
in
e
n
t 
s
ig
n
-o
ff
 f
ro
m
 t
h
e
 L
e
e
d
s
 Y
o
u
th
 C
o
u
n
c
il
. 
It
 a
d
d
re
s
s
e
s
 

p
o
in
ts
 c
o
v
e
re
d
 i
n
 t
h
is
 r
e
c
o
m
m
e
n
d
a
ti
o
n
. 
It
 w
il
l 
b
e
 o
ff
ic
ia
ll
y
 

la
u
n
c
h
e
d
 f
o
ll
o
w
in
g
 t
h
is
 s
ig
n
-o
ff
 a
n
d
 a
 c
o
m
m
u
n
ic
a
ti
o
n
s
 s
tr
a
te
g
y
 

w
il
l 
b
e
 a
g
re
e
d
 b
y
 y
o
u
n
g
 p
e
o
p
le
 t
o
 s
h
a
re
 i
t 
a
c
ro
s
s
 t
h
e
 c
it
y
. 

 A
p
p
ro
x
im
a
te
ly
 3
0
 y
o
u
n
g
 p
e
o
p
le
 h
a
v
e
 s
u
s
ta
in
e
d
 i
n
v
o
lv
e
m
e
n
t 
in
 

th
is
 d
e
v
e
lo
p
m
e
n
t,
 a
n
d
 a
 g
ro
u
p
 h
a
s
 b
e
e
n
 f
o
rm

e
d
 w
h
ic
h
 w
il
l 
b
e
 

re
s
p
o
n
s
ib
le
 o
v
e
r 
th
e
 l
o
n
g
e
r 
te
rm

 f
o
r 
th
e
 B
re
e
z
e
 Y
o
u
th
 P
ro
m
is
e
. 

 

4
 o
r 
5
 

(n
o
t 

a
c
h
ie
v
e
d
) 

 
B
o
a
rd
 t
o
 

d
e
te
rm

in
e
 

w
h
e
th
e
r 
 

p
ro
g
re
s
s
 i
s
  

a
c
c
e
p
ta
b
le
 

 
 

 

Page 36



Y
o
u
th
 S
e
rv
ic
e
s
 

 
R
e
p
o
rt
 p
u
b
li
s
h
e
d
 M
a
y
 2
0
0
7
  

 
 

L
a
s
t 
u
p
d
a
te
 r
e
c
e
iv
e
d
 J
u
ly
 2
0
0
8
 

 

 
R
e
c
o
m
m
e
n
d
a
ti
o
n
 

W
h
e
re
 w
e
 a
re
 u
p
 t
o
  

S
ta
g
e
 

C
o
m
p
le
te
 

6
 
T
h
a
t 
th
e
 D
ir
e
c
to
r 
o
f 
C
h
il
d
re
n
’s
 S
e
rv
ic
e
s
 

fi
n
d
s
 w
a
y
s
 o
f 
p
ro
m
o
ti
n
g
 p
o
s
it
iv
e
 

re
la
ti
o
n
s
h
ip
s
 b
e
tw
e
e
n
 t
h
e
 p
o
li
c
e
 a
n
d
 

y
o
u
th
 s
e
rv
ic
e
s
 m
o
re
 w
id
e
ly
, 
b
u
il
d
in
g
 o
n
 

th
e
 g
o
o
d
 e
x
a
m
p
le
s
 t
h
a
t 
e
x
is
t 
in
 s
o
m
e
 

p
a
rt
s
 o
f 
th
e
 c
it
y
. 

O
c
to
b
e
r 
2
0
0
7
 p
o
s
it
io
n
 

T
h
e
 p
o
s
it
io
n
 r
e
m
a
in
s
 t
h
a
t 
th
e
re
 a
re
 g
o
o
d
 l
o
c
a
l 
e
x
a
m
p
le
s
 b
u
t 
n
o
 

s
tr
a
te
g
ic
 d
is
c
u
s
s
io
n
s
 h
a
v
e
 a
s
 y
e
t 
ta
k
e
n
 p
la
c
e
. 
 T
h
is
 w
o
u
ld
 b
e
 a
 

u
s
e
fu
l 
s
ta
rt
in
g
 p
o
in
t 
a
n
d
 w
ill
 b
e
 f
o
llo
w
e
d
 u
p
. 

 J
a
n
u
a
ry
 2
0
0
8
 u
p
d
a
te
 

T
h
is
 w
ill
 b
e
 f
o
llo
w
e
d
 u
p
 o
n
c
e
 t
h
e
 I
n
te
g
ra
te
d
 Y
o
u
th
 S
u
p
p
o
rt
 S
e
rv
ic
e
 

is
 i
n
 o
p
e
ra
ti
o
n
. 

 J
u
ly
 2
0
0
8
 U
p
d
a
te
 

P
ro
g
re
s
s
 o
n
 t
h
is
 w
o
rk
 h
a
s
 b
e
e
n
 g
o
o
d
. 
T
h
e
re
 i
s
 a
 r
a
n
g
e
 o
f 

p
o
s
it
iv
e
 w
o
rk
 a
n
d
 r
e
la
ti
o
n
s
h
ip
s
 t
a
k
in
g
 p
la
c
e
, 
w
it
h
 a
 g
o
o
d
 

re
fe
rr
a
l 
s
y
s
te
m
 f
ro
m
 t
h
e
 p
o
li
c
e
 t
o
 t
h
e
 ‘
P
o
s
it
iv
e
 A
c
ti
v
it
ie
s
 f
o
r 

Y
o
u
n
g
 P
e
o
p
le
’ 
s
c
h
e
m
e
. 

 

2
 

(A
c
h
ie
v
e
d
)  

ü üüü
 

7
 
W
e
 r
e
c
o
m
m
e
n
d
 t
h
a
t 
th
e
 D
ir
e
c
to
r 
o
f 

C
h
il
d
re
n
’s
 S
e
rv
ic
e
s
 e
n
s
u
re
s
 t
h
a
t,
 i
n
 

a
d
d
it
io
n
 t
o
 e
x
is
ti
n
g
 c
o
n
s
u
lt
a
ti
o
n
 w
it
h
 

s
e
rv
ic
e
 u
s
e
rs
, 
s
p
e
c
if
ic
 e
ff
o
rt
s
 a
re
 m
a
d
e
 t
o
 

c
o
n
s
u
lt
 w
it
h
 n
o
n
 s
e
rv
ic
e
 u
s
e
rs
 a
b
o
u
t 
th
e
ir
 

v
ie
w
s
 o
n
 t
h
e
 Y
o
u
th
 S
e
rv
ic
e
. 
 

 

O
c
to
b
e
r 
2
0
0
7
 p
o
s
it
io
n
 

T
h
e
 Y
o
u
th
 S
e
rv
ic
e
 w
ill
 b
e
 c
o
n
d
u
c
ti
n
g
 i
ts
 s
e
c
o
n
d
 a
n
n
u
a
l 
u
s
e
r 
s
u
rv
e
y
 

in
 O
c
to
b
e
r 
2
0
0
7
. 
 T
h
is
 i
s
 s
p
e
c
if
ic
a
lly
 d
e
s
ig
n
e
d
 t
o
 a
s
s
e
s
s
 c
u
s
to
m
e
r 

fe
e
d
b
a
c
k
 a
n
d
 s
a
ti
s
fa
c
ti
o
n
 r
a
ti
n
g
s
. 
 E
x
te
n
s
iv
e
 p
u
b
lic
 c
o
n
s
u
lt
a
ti
o
n
 

w
it
h
 y
o
u
n
g
 p
e
o
p
le
 a
b
o
u
t 
th
e
 y
o
u
th
 o
ff
e
r 
h
a
s
 b
e
e
n
 t
a
k
in
g
 p
la
c
e
 

d
u
ri
n
g
 t
h
e
 s
u
m
m
e
r 
a
s
 p
a
rt
 o
f 
B
re
e
z
e
 o
n
 T
o
u
r.
 

 J
a
n
u
a
ry
 2
0
0
8
 u
p
d
a
te
 

T
h
e
 a
n
n
u
a
l 
u
s
e
r 
s
u
rv
e
y
 w
ill
 n
o
w
 t
a
k
e
 p
la
c
e
 i
n
 F
e
b
ru
a
ry
 2
0
0
8
. 

 J
u
ly
 2
0
0
8
 U
p
d
a
te
 

R
e
p
o
rt
s
 f
ro
m
 t
h
e
 u
s
e
r 
s
u
rv
e
y
 a
n
d
 a
 f
o
c
u
s
 g
ro
u
p
 w
it
h
 n
o
n
 

s
e
rv
ic
e
 u
s
e
rs
 h
a
v
e
 b
e
e
n
 c
ir
c
u
la
te
d
 t
o
 m
e
m
b
e
rs
 o
f 
th
e
 S
c
ru
ti
n
y
 

B
o
a
rd
. 

 

2
 

(A
c
h
ie
v
e
d
)  

ü üüü
 

Page 37



D
e
p
a
rt
m
e
n
ta
l 
C
o
m
m
u
n
ic
a
ti
o
n
s
  

 
S
ta
te
m
e
n
t 
p
u
b
li
s
h
e
d
 A
p
ri
l 
2
0
0
7
  

 
L
a
s
t 
u
p
d
a
te
 r
e
c
e
iv
e
d
 J
u
ly
 2
0
0
8
 

  
R
e
c
o
m
m
e
n
d
a
ti
o
n
 

 
W
h
e
re
 w
e
 a
re
 u
p
 t
o
  

S
ta
g
e
 

C
o
m
p
le
te
 

2
 

T
h
a
t 
c
o
s
ts
 f
o
r 
d
e
p
a
rt
m
e
n
ta
l 
p
u
b
li
c
a
ti
o
n
s
 

2
0
0
6
/2
0
0
7
 b
e
 s
u
p
p
li
e
d
 t
o
 a
 f
u
tu
re
 

m
e
e
ti
n
g
 o
f 
S
c
ru
ti
n
y
 B
o
a
rd
 (
C
h
il
d
re
n
’s
 

S
e
rv
ic
e
s
),
 t
o
 e
s
ta
b
li
s
h
 a
 b
a
s
e
li
n
e
 f
ig
u
re
 

fo
r 
d
e
p
a
rt
m
e
n
ta
l 
p
u
b
li
c
a
ti
o
n
s
 p
ro
d
u
c
e
d
 

b
y
 E
d
u
c
a
ti
o
n
 L
e
e
d
s
 f
o
r 
c
o
m
p
a
ri
s
o
n
 w
it
h
 

fu
tu
re
 y
e
a
rs
. 

 

J
u
ly
 2
0
0
7
 p
o
s
it
io
n
 

C
o
m
p
re
h
e
n
s
iv
e
 c
o
s
ts
 f
o
r 
2
0
0
6
/0
7
 n
o
t 
a
v
a
ila
b
le
 

C
o
s
ts
 f
o
r 
2
0
0
7
/0
8
 b
e
in
g
 m

o
n
it
o
re
d
 

S
c
ru
ti
n
y
 B
o
a
rd
 a
g
re
e
d
 t
o
 t
h
is
 a
s
 a
n
 a
lt
e
rn
a
ti
v
e
. 

R
e
v
ie
w
 a
t 
e
n
d
 o
f 
2
0
0
7
/0
8
 f
in
a
n
c
ia
l 
y
e
a
r 

 J
u
ly
 2
0
0
8
 U
p
d
a
te
 

T
h
e
 f
ig
u
re
 i
s
 £
1
2
4
,5
7
2
 a
n
d
 t
h
is
 i
s
 t
h
e
 b
a
s
e
li
n
e
 t
o
 b
e
 u
s
e
d
. 

  

2
 

(A
c
h
ie
v
e
d
) 

ü üüü
 

3
 

T
h
a
t 
th
e
 D
ir
e
c
to
r 
o
f 
C
h
il
d
re
n
’s
 S
e
rv
ic
e
s
 

o
b
ta
in
 c
o
s
ts
 f
o
r 
p
u
b
li
c
a
ti
o
n
s
 r
e
la
ti
n
g
 t
o
 

C
h
il
d
re
n
’s
 S
e
rv
ic
e
s
 2
0
0
6
/2
0
0
7
 f
ro
m
 

C
o
u
n
c
il
 D
e
p
a
rt
m
e
n
ts
 a
n
d
 e
x
te
rn
a
l 

p
a
rt
n
e
rs
, 
w
h
e
re
 a
v
a
il
a
b
le
, 
to
 s
u
p
p
ly
 t
o
 a
 

fu
tu
re
 m
e
e
ti
n
g
 o
f 
S
c
ru
ti
n
y
 B
o
a
rd
 

(C
h
il
d
re
n
’s
 S
e
rv
ic
e
s
).
 

J
u
ly
 2
0
0
7
 p
o
s
it
io
n
 

R
e
s
p
o
n
s
e
 i
n
d
ic
a
te
d
 a
m
o
u
n
t 
o
f 
w
o
rk
 r
e
q
u
ir
e
d
 t
o
 a
c
h
ie
v
e
 

re
c
o
m
m
e
n
d
a
ti
o
n
. 

B
o
a
rd
 a
g
re
e
d
 t
h
a
t 
in
fo
rm

a
ti
o
n
 w
o
u
ld
 b
e
 s
o
u
g
h
t 
fr
o
m
 c
o
u
n
c
il 

d
e
p
a
rt
m
e
n
ts
 o
n
ly
 i
n
 t
h
e
 f
ir
s
t 
p
la
c
e
, 
fo
r 
2
0
0
7
/0
8
 

R
e
v
ie
w
 a
t 
e
n
d
 o
f 
2
0
0
7
/0
8
 f
in
a
n
c
ia
l 
y
e
a
r 

 J
u
ly
 2
0
0
8
 U
p
d
a
te
 

T
h
e
 f
ig
u
re
 a
c
ro
s
s
 c
h
il
d
re
n
’s
 s
e
rv
ic
e
s
 e
x
c
lu
d
in
g
 E
d
u
c
a
ti
o
n
 L
e
e
d
s
 

is
 £
2
3
1
,3
3
3
. 
 T
h
is
 i
s
 t
h
e
 b
a
s
e
li
n
e
 t
o
 b
e
 u
s
e
d
. 
T
h
is
 i
n
c
lu
d
e
s
: 

B
re
e
z
e
, 
T
h
e
 P
ro
je
c
t 
a
n
d
 F
a
m
il
y
 H
u
b
 s
p
e
n
d
in
g
. 
 A
ls
o
 Y
o
u
th
 

S
e
rv
ic
e
s
 a
n
d
 C
h
il
d
re
n
 a
n
d
 Y
o
u
n
g
 P
e
o
p
le
’s
 S
o
c
ia
l 
C
a
re
 a
n
d
 c
ro
s
s
-

s
e
rv
ic
e
 p
u
b
li
c
a
ti
o
n
s
/r
e
s
o
u
rc
e
s
 s
u
c
h
 a
s
 t
h
o
s
e
 r
e
la
ti
n
g
 t
o
 t
h
e
 

C
h
il
d
re
n
 a
n
d
 Y
o
u
n
g
 P
e
o
p
le
’s
 P
la
n
 a
n
d
 t
h
e
 P
a
rt
ic
ip
a
ti
o
n
 S
tr
a
te
g
y
. 

  

2
 

(A
c
h
ie
v
e
d
) 

ü üüü
 

 

Page 38



C
a
tc
h
in
g
 t
h
e
 B
u
s
 
 

 
R
e
p
o
rt
 p
u
b
li
s
h
e
d
 A
p
ri
l 
2
0
0
7
 

 
 

L
a
s
t 
u
p
d
a
te
 r
e
c
e
iv
e
d
 J
u
ly
 2
0
0
8
 

  
R
e
c
o
m
m
e
n
d
a
ti
o
n
 

 
W
h
e
re
 w
e
 a
re
 u
p
 t
o
  

S
ta
g
e
 

C
o
m
p
le
te
 

1
 

T
h
a
t 
F
ir
s
t 
B
u
s
 r
e
v
ie
w
 i
ts
 f
a
re
 s
tr
u
c
tu
re
 

s
o
 t
h
a
t 
th
e
 f
a
re
 p
a
id
 b
e
tt
e
r 
m
a
tc
h
e
s
 t
h
e
 

d
is
ta
n
c
e
 t
ra
v
e
ll
e
d
. 
T
h
a
t 
F
ir
s
t 
B
u
s
 r
e
v
ie
w
 

it
s
 f
a
re
 s
tr
u
c
tu
re
 i
n
 t
h
e
 l
ig
h
t 
o
f 
th
e
 

fo
ru
m
’s
 f
in
d
in
g
s
 o
n
 t
h
e
 b
a
rr
ie
r 
c
o
s
t 

re
p
re
s
e
n
ts
 t
o
 y
o
u
n
g
 p
e
o
p
le
. 
A
n
d
, 
th
a
t 

F
ir
s
t 
B
u
s
 r
e
p
o
rt
 i
ts
 

c
o
n
c
lu
s
io
n
s
/i
n
te
n
ti
o
n
s
 t
o
 S
c
ru
ti
n
y
 B
o
a
rd
 

(C
h
il
d
re
n
’s
 S
e
rv
ic
e
s
) 
in
 J
u
ly
 2
0
0
7
. 

 

J
u
ly
 2
0
0
7
 p
o
s
it
io
n
 

F
ir
s
t 
h
a
s
 a
g
re
e
d
 t
o
 r
e
-e
x
a
m
in
e
 t
h
is
 i
s
s
u
e
 w
h
e
n
 f
a
re
s
 a
re
 n
e
x
t 

re
v
ie
w
e
d
, 
a
lt
h
o
u
g
h
 t
h
e
 s
c
o
p
e
 f
o
r 
c
h
a
n
g
e
 m
a
y
 b
e
 l
im
it
e
d
. 

 J
a
n
u
a
ry
 2
0
0
8
 u
p
d
a
te
 

T
h
e
 i
s
s
u
e
 w
ill
 b
e
 r
a
is
e
d
 w
h
e
n
 t
h
e
 y
o
u
n
g
 p
e
o
p
le
 a
tt
e
n
d
 M

e
tr
o
’s
 

‘O
p
e
ra
to
r 
m
e
e
ti
n
g
’ 
o
n
 4

th
 M
a
rc
h
. 
 

 J
u
ly
 2
0
0
8
 u
p
d
a
te
 

T
h
is
 w
a
s
 r
a
is
e
d
 b
y
 y
o
u
n
g
 p
e
o
p
le
 a
t 
th
e
 M
e
tr
o
 ‘
O
p
e
ra
to
r 
G
ro
u
p
’ 

m
e
e
ti
n
g
 o
n
 1
3
th
 M
a
y
. 
T
h
e
 r
e
a
s
o
n
s
 f
o
r 
th
e
 c
u
rr
e
n
t 
fa
re
 s
tr
u
c
tu
re
 

h
a
v
e
 b
e
e
n
 e
x
p
la
in
e
d
 b
y
 F
ir
s
t 
B
u
s
. 

 

1
 

(S
to
p
 

m
o
n
it
o
ri
n
g
) 

 

ü üüü
 

2
 

T
h
a
t 
M
e
tr
o
 s
h
o
u
ld
 i
n
v
e
s
ti
g
a
te
 t
h
e
 

p
o
s
s
ib
il
it
y
 o
f 
d
e
v
e
lo
p
in
g
 a
 

c
o
n
c
e
s
s
io
n
a
ry
 s
c
h
e
m
e
 w
h
e
re
b
y
 y
o
u
n
g
 

p
e
o
p
le
 p
a
y
 f
o
r 
th
e
 f
ir
s
t 
fe
w
 j
o
u
rn
e
y
s
 i
n
 

th
e
 u
s
u
a
l 
w
a
y
 a
n
d
 t
h
e
n
 g
e
t 
o
n
e
/t
w
o
 f
re
e
 

(b
u
y
 f
o
u
r,
 g
e
t 
o
n
e
 f
re
e
 f
o
r 
e
x
a
m
p
le
 b
u
t 

a
v
o
id
in
g
 t
h
e
 n
e
e
d
 t
o
 p
a
y
 u
p
 f
ro
n
t)
 a
n
d
 

re
p
o
rt
 t
h
e
ir
 f
in
d
in
g
s
/a
c
ti
o
n
s
 t
o
 S
c
ru
ti
n
y
 

B
o
a
rd
 (
C
h
il
d
re
n
’s
 S
e
rv
ic
e
s
) 
in
 J
u
ly
 2
0
0
7
. 

 

J
u
ly
 2
0
0
7
 p
o
s
it
io
n
 

M
e
tr
o
 h
a
s
 a
g
re
e
d
 t
o
 c
o
n
s
id
e
r 
th
is
 a
p
p
ro
a
c
h
. 

 J
a
n
u
a
ry
 2
0
0
8
 u
p
d
a
te
 

T
h
is
 t
y
p
e
 o
f 
s
c
h
e
m
e
 i
s
 c
o
n
d
it
io
n
a
l 
o
n
 t
h
e
 i
n
tr
o
d
u
c
ti
o
n
 o
f 
s
m
a
rt
 c
a
rd
s
. 
 

M
e
tr
o
 w
ill
 k
e
e
p
 t
h
e
 S
c
ru
ti
n
y
 F
o
ru
m
 i
n
fo
rm

e
d
 o
f 
p
ro
g
re
s
s
 i
n
 t
h
is
 a
re
a
. 

 J
u
ly
 2
0
0
8
 U
p
d
a
te
 

O
p
e
ra
to
rs
 h
a
v
e
 a
g
re
e
d
 t
o
 a
 ‘
g
e
t 
a
ro
u
n
d
 f
o
r 
a
 p
o
u
n
d
’ 
p
ro
m
o
ti
o
n
 

o
v
e
r 
th
e
 s
u
m
m
e
r 
h
o
li
d
a
y
, 
e
n
ti
tl
in
g
 a
ll
 y
o
u
n
g
 p
e
o
p
le
 (
1
1
-1
6
) 
w
it
h
 a
 

h
a
lf
 f
a
re
 p
a
s
s
 t
o
 a
 £
1
 t
ic
k
e
t.
  
O
th
e
r 
w
o
rk
 t
o
 t
a
k
e
 t
h
is
 f
o
rw
a
rd
 i
s
 

s
ti
ll
 o
n
g
o
in
g
. 

3
, 
4
 o
r 
5
 

(n
o
t 

a
c
h
ie
v
e
d
) 

 
B
o
a
rd
 t
o
 

d
e
te
rm

in
e
 

w
h
e
th
e
r 
 

p
ro
g
re
s
s
 i
s
  

a
c
c
e
p
ta
b
le
  
 

 

Page 39



C
a
tc
h
in
g
 t
h
e
 B
u
s
 
 

 
R
e
p
o
rt
 p
u
b
li
s
h
e
d
 A
p
ri
l 
2
0
0
7
 

 
 

L
a
s
t 
u
p
d
a
te
 r
e
c
e
iv
e
d
 J
u
ly
 2
0
0
8
 

  
R
e
c
o
m
m
e
n
d
a
ti
o
n
 

 
W
h
e
re
 w
e
 a
re
 u
p
 t
o
  

S
ta
g
e
 

C
o
m
p
le
te
 

4
 

T
h
a
t 
M
e
tr
o
 r
e
v
ie
w
s
 t
h
e
 e
ff
e
c
ti
v
e
n
e
s
s
 o
f 

it
s
 m
a
rk
e
ti
n
g
 s
tr
a
te
g
ie
s
 w
it
h
 r
e
g
a
rd
 t
o
 

y
o
u
n
g
 p
e
o
p
le
’s
 c
o
n
c
e
s
s
io
n
a
ry
 s
c
h
e
m
e
s
 

a
n
d
 r
e
p
o
rt
 i
ts
 p
ro
g
re
s
s
 t
o
 S
c
ru
ti
n
y
 

B
o
a
rd
 (
C
h
il
d
re
n
’s
 S
e
rv
ic
e
s
) 
in
 J
u
ly
 2
0
0
7
. 

J
u
ly
 2
0
0
7
 p
o
s
it
io
n
 

M
e
tr
o
 h
a
s
 o
ff
e
re
d
 t
o
 w
o
rk
 w
it
h
 t
h
e
 D
ir
e
c
to
r 
o
f 
C
h
ild
re
n
’s
 S
e
rv
ic
e
s
 o
n
 

th
is
 i
s
s
u
e
. 

 J
a
n
u
a
ry
 2
0
0
8
 u
p
d
a
te
 

S
o
m
e
 p
ro
g
re
s
s
 h
a
s
 b
e
e
n
 m
a
d
e
 i
n
 t
h
is
 a
re
a
. 
 M
e
tr
o
 n
o
w
 p
ro
v
id
e
 

in
fo
rm

a
ti
o
n
 t
o
 y
o
u
n
g
 p
e
o
p
le
 a
t 
k
e
y
 t
im
e
s
 i
n
 t
h
e
ir
 l
iv
e
s
 e
g
. 
A
g
e
 1
1
 a
n
d
 

1
6
. 
 A
 n
e
w
 w
e
b
s
it
e
, 
w
w
w
.g
e
n
e
ra
ti
o
n
m
.c
o
.u
k
 h
a
s
 b
e
e
n
 l
a
u
n
c
h
e
d
 a
n
d
 

is
 p
ro
v
in
g
 s
u
c
c
e
s
s
fu
l.
 

 J
u
ly
 2
0
0
8
 u
p
d
a
te
 

M
e
tr
o
 a
re
 c
o
n
ti
n
u
in
g
 t
o
 d
e
v
e
lo
p
 t
h
e
ir
 ‘
g
e
n
e
ra
ti
o
n
 M
’ 
w
e
b
s
it
e
, 
a
n
d
 

a
re
 h
o
p
in
g
 t
o
 e
x
p
a
n
d
 i
t 
to
 c
o
v
e
r 
p
o
s
t-
1
6
 e
d
u
c
a
ti
o
n
 a
s
 w
e
ll
 a
s
 

s
c
h
o
o
ls
. 

2
 

(A
c
h
ie
v
e
d
) 

ü üüü
 

5
 

T
h
a
t 
M
e
tr
o
 d
e
v
e
lo
p
 a
 t
e
x
t 
m
e
s
s
a
g
in
g
 

c
o
m
m
e
n
ts
 a
n
d
 c
o
m
p
la
in
ts
 s
y
s
te
m
, 

p
ro
m
o
te
 t
h
is
 a
m
o
n
g
s
t 
y
o
u
n
g
 p
e
o
p
le
 a
n
d
 

re
p
o
rt
 p
ro
g
re
s
s
 t
o
 S
c
ru
ti
n
y
 B
o
a
rd
 

(C
h
il
d
re
n
’s
 S
e
rv
ic
e
s
) 
in
 J
u
ly
 2
0
0
7
. 

 

J
u
ly
 2
0
0
7
 p
o
s
it
io
n
 

M
e
tr
o
 w
ill
 c
o
n
s
id
e
r 
th
is
 f
u
rt
h
e
r 
fo
llo
w
in
g
 t
h
e
 l
a
u
n
c
h
 o
f 
th
e
ir
 y
o
u
n
g
 

p
e
o
p
le
’s
 w
e
b
s
it
e
 

 J
a
n
u
a
ry
 2
0
0
8
 u
p
d
a
te
 

T
h
e
 w
e
b
s
it
e
 h
a
s
 n
o
w
 b
e
e
n
 l
a
u
n
c
h
e
d
 a
n
d
 c
o
m
p
la
in
ts
/c
o
m
m
e
n
ts
 c
a
n
 

b
e
 s
u
b
m
it
te
d
 b
y
 e
m
a
il.
  
M
e
tr
o
 a
re
 s
ti
ll 
c
o
n
s
id
e
ri
n
g
 t
h
e
 p
o
s
s
ib
ili
ty
 o
f 

in
tr
o
d
u
c
in
g
 a
 t
e
x
t 
m
e
s
s
a
g
e
 s
y
s
te
m
 a
t 
s
o
m
e
 p
o
in
t 
in
 t
h
e
 f
u
tu
re
. 

 J
u
ly
 2
0
0
8
 u
p
d
a
te
 

M
e
tr
o
 h
a
s
 r
e
q
u
e
s
te
d
 a
 q
u
o
te
 f
o
r 
s
e
tt
in
g
 u
p
 a
n
d
 r
u
n
n
in
g
 a
 t
e
x
t 

m
e
s
s
a
g
in
g
 s
e
rv
ic
e
. 

 

4
 o
r 
5
 

(N
o
t 

a
c
h
ie
v
e
d
) 
 

 
B
o
a
rd
 t
o
 

d
e
te
rm

in
e
 

w
h
e
th
e
r 
 

p
ro
g
re
s
s
 i
s
  

a
c
c
e
p
ta
b
le
  
 

 

Page 40



C
a
tc
h
in
g
 t
h
e
 B
u
s
 
 

 
R
e
p
o
rt
 p
u
b
li
s
h
e
d
 A
p
ri
l 
2
0
0
7
 

 
 

L
a
s
t 
u
p
d
a
te
 r
e
c
e
iv
e
d
 J
u
ly
 2
0
0
8
 

  
R
e
c
o
m
m
e
n
d
a
ti
o
n
 

 
W
h
e
re
 w
e
 a
re
 u
p
 t
o
  

S
ta
g
e
 

C
o
m
p
le
te
 

8
 

T
h
a
t 
th
e
 D
ir
e
c
to
r 
o
f 
C
h
il
d
re
n
’s
 S
e
rv
ic
e
s
 

in
v
e
s
ti
g
a
te
s
 a
d
d
in
g
 t
ra
v
e
l 
c
o
n
c
e
s
s
io
n
s
 

to
 t
h
e
 o
th
e
r 
b
e
n
e
fi
ts
 o
f 
th
e
 B
re
e
z
e
 c
a
rd
 

a
n
d
 r
e
p
o
rt
s
 b
a
c
k
 t
o
 S
c
ru
ti
n
y
 B
o
a
rd
 

(C
h
il
d
re
n
’s
 S
e
rv
ic
e
s
) 
in
 J
u
ly
 2
0
0
7
. 

 

J
u
ly
 2
0
0
7
 p
o
s
it
io
n
 

T
h
e
re
 a
re
 s
o
m
e
 t
e
c
h
n
ic
a
l 
is
s
u
e
s
 t
h
a
t 
n
e
e
d
 t
o
 b
e
 a
d
d
re
s
s
e
d
. 
 

M
e
tr
o
 a
n
d
 L
e
e
d
s
 C
it
y
 C
o
u
n
c
il 
h
a
v
e
 a
g
re
e
d
 t
o
 c
lo
s
e
r 
jo
in
t 
w
o
rk
in
g
 o
n
 

p
u
b
lic
it
y
, 
e
v
e
n
ts
 a
n
d
 d
is
c
o
u
n
ts
. 

 J
a
n
u
a
ry
 2
0
0
8
 u
p
d
a
te
 

In
v
e
s
ti
g
a
ti
o
n
s
 i
n
to
 t
h
is
 a
re
 o
n
g
o
in
g
. 
 T
h
is
 s
c
h
e
m
e
 w
ill
 a
ls
o
 d
e
p
e
n
d
 o
n
 

th
e
 i
n
tr
o
d
u
c
ti
o
n
 o
f 
a
 s
m
a
rt
 c
a
rd
. 
 M
e
tr
o
 w
ill
 k
e
e
p
 t
h
e
 S
c
ru
ti
n
y
 F
o
ru
m
 

in
fo
rm

e
d
 o
f 
p
ro
g
re
s
s
 i
n
 t
h
is
 a
re
a
. 

 J
u
ly
 2
0
0
8
 U
p
d
a
te
 

S
e
e
 r
e
c
o
m
m
e
n
d
a
ti
o
n
 2
. 
O
p
e
ra
to
rs
 h
a
v
e
 a
g
re
e
d
 t
o
 a
 ‘
g
e
t 
a
ro
u
n
d
 

fo
r 
a
 p
o
u
n
d
’ 
p
ro
m
o
ti
o
n
 o
v
e
r 
th
e
 s
u
m
m
e
r 
h
o
li
d
a
y
, 
e
n
ti
tl
in
g
 a
ll
 

y
o
u
n
g
 p
e
o
p
le
 (
1
1
-1
6
) 
w
it
h
 a
 h
a
lf
 f
a
re
 p
a
s
s
 t
o
 a
 £
1
 t
ic
k
e
t.
  
O
th
e
r 

w
o
rk
 t
o
 t
a
k
e
 t
h
is
 f
o
rw
a
rd
 i
s
 s
ti
ll
 o
n
g
o
in
g
. 

 

3
, 
4
 o
r 
5
 

(n
o
t 

a
c
h
ie
v
e
d
) 

 
B
o
a
rd
 t
o
 

d
e
te
rm

in
e
 

w
h
e
th
e
r 
 

p
ro
g
re
s
s
 i
s
  

a
c
c
e
p
ta
b
le
  
 

 

Page 41



C
a
tc
h
in
g
 t
h
e
 B
u
s
 
 

 
R
e
p
o
rt
 p
u
b
li
s
h
e
d
 A
p
ri
l 
2
0
0
7
 

 
 

L
a
s
t 
u
p
d
a
te
 r
e
c
e
iv
e
d
 J
u
ly
 2
0
0
8
 

  
R
e
c
o
m
m
e
n
d
a
ti
o
n
 

 
W
h
e
re
 w
e
 a
re
 u
p
 t
o
  

S
ta
g
e
 

C
o
m
p
le
te
 

9
 

T
h
a
t 
th
e
 D
ir
e
c
to
r 
o
f 
C
h
il
d
re
n
’s
 S
e
rv
ic
e
s
 

o
rd
e
rs
 a
 r
e
v
ie
w
 o
f 
h
o
w
 s
c
h
o
o
l 
tr
a
n
s
p
o
rt
 

m
o
n
ie
s
 a
re
 b
e
in
g
 s
p
e
n
t 
in
 L
e
e
d
s
 t
o
 s
e
e
 

if
 t
h
e
re
 i
s
 a
 b
e
tt
e
r 
w
a
y
 i
n
 w
h
ic
h
 i
t 
c
o
u
ld
 

b
e
 s
p
e
n
t 
a
n
d
 r
e
p
o
rt
s
 b
a
c
k
 t
o
 S
c
ru
ti
n
y
 

B
o
a
rd
 (
C
h
il
d
re
n
’s
 S
e
rv
ic
e
s
) 
in
 J
u
ly
 2
0
0
7
. 

 

J
u
ly
 2
0
0
7
 p
o
s
it
io
n
 

A
 r
e
v
ie
w
 i
s
 t
a
k
in
g
 p
la
c
e
. 
M
e
tr
o
 i
s
 d
e
v
e
lo
p
in
g
 a
 p
a
th
fi
n
d
e
r 
b
id
 f
o
r 

N
o
v
e
m
b
e
r 
2
0
0
7
. 

 J
a
n
u
a
ry
 2
0
0
8
 u
p
d
a
te
 

T
h
e
 S
c
h
o
o
l 
T
ra
n
s
p
o
rt
 T
e
a
m
 w
it
h
in
 E
d
u
c
a
ti
o
n
 L
e
e
d
s
 a
re
 i
n
v
o
lv
e
d
 i
n
 

a
n
 o
n
g
o
in
g
 r
e
v
ie
w
 o
f 
tr
a
n
s
p
o
rt
 c
o
s
ts
 a
n
d
 i
m
p
lic
a
ti
o
n
s
. 
 T
h
is
 i
s
 s
e
t 

w
it
h
in
 t
h
e
 c
o
n
te
x
t 
o
f 
th
e
 s
ta
tu
to
ry
 o
b
lig
a
ti
o
n
s
 t
h
a
t 
m
u
s
t 
b
e
 m
e
t 
u
n
d
e
r 

g
o
v
e
rn
m
e
n
t 
le
g
is
la
ti
o
n
. 
 T
h
e
 t
e
a
m
 h
a
s
 b
e
e
n
 l
ia
is
in
g
 c
lo
s
e
ly
 w
it
h
 M
e
tr
o
 

a
s
 p
a
rt
 o
f 
th
is
 w
o
rk
, 
w
it
h
 a
 s
tr
o
n
g
 e
m
p
h
a
s
is
 o
n
 t
a
k
in
g
 f
o
rw
a
rd
 t
h
e
 

re
c
o
m
m
e
n
d
a
ti
o
n
s
 f
ro
m
 t
h
e
 s
c
ru
ti
n
y
 r
e
v
ie
w
, 
p
a
rt
ic
u
la
rl
y
 u
s
in
g
 t
h
e
 

B
re
e
z
e
 c
a
rd
 t
o
 w
id
e
n
 a
c
c
e
s
s
 t
o
 b
u
s
 t
ra
n
s
p
o
rt
. 
 O
n
g
o
in
g
 u
p
d
a
te
s
 o
n
 

th
is
 p
ro
g
re
s
s
 c
a
n
 b
e
 p
ro
v
id
e
d
. 

 J
u
ly
 2
0
0
8
 U
p
d
a
te
 

A
 r
e
p
o
rt
 w
il
l 
b
e
 s
u
b
m
it
te
d
 s
h
o
rt
ly
 t
o
 E
x
e
c
u
ti
v
e
 B
o
a
rd
 p
ri
o
r 
to
 

c
o
n
s
u
lt
a
ti
o
n
 d
u
ri
n
g
 t
h
e
 a
u
tu
m
n
 t
e
rm

 o
n
 p
ro
p
o
s
e
d
 c
h
a
n
g
e
s
 t
o
 

th
e
 H
o
m
e
 t
o
 S
c
h
o
o
l 
T
ra
n
s
p
o
rt
 p
o
li
c
y
 t
o
 t
a
k
e
 e
ff
e
c
t 
fr
o
m
 

S
e
p
te
m
b
e
r 
2
0
0
9
. 
P
a
rt
 o
f 
th
e
 p
ro
p
o
s
a
ls
 a
re
 l
ik
e
ly
 t
o
 i
n
c
o
rp
o
ra
te
 

a
m
e
n
d
m
e
n
ts
 t
o
 t
h
e
 p
o
li
c
y
 f
o
r 
s
u
p
p
o
rt
 f
o
r 
c
h
il
d
re
n
 w
it
h
 a
d
d
it
io
n
a
l 

tr
a
n
s
p
o
rt
 n
e
e
d
s
 (
fo
r 
e
x
a
m
p
le
 c
h
il
d
re
n
 w
it
h
 s
p
e
c
ia
l 
e
d
u
c
a
ti
o
n
a
l 

n
e
e
d
s
) 
to
 r
e
fl
e
c
t 
im
p
ro
v
e
d
 c
o
o
rd
in
a
ti
o
n
 b
e
tw
e
e
n
 t
h
e
 p
o
li
c
ie
s
 

p
re
v
io
u
s
ly
 a
d
m
in
is
te
re
d
 s
e
p
a
ra
te
ly
 b
y
 E
d
u
c
a
ti
o
n
 L
e
e
d
s
 a
n
d
 

C
h
il
d
re
n
 a
n
d
 Y
o
u
n
g
 P
e
o
p
le
's
 S
o
c
ia
l 
C
a
re
. 

  

4
 o
r 
5
 

(n
o
t 

a
c
h
ie
v
e
d
) 

 
B
o
a
rd
 t
o
 

d
e
te
rm

in
e
 

w
h
e
th
e
r 
 

p
ro
g
re
s
s
 i
s
  

a
c
c
e
p
ta
b
le
 

 

 

Page 42



F
o
u
n
ta
in
 P
ri
m
a
ry
 S
c
h
o
o
l  

 
R
e
p
o
rt
 p
u
b
li
s
h
e
d
 N
o
v
e
m
b
e
r 
2
0
0
7
 

 
L
a
s
t 
u
p
d
a
te
 r
e
c
e
iv
e
d
 J
u
ly
 2
0
0
8
 

  
R
e
c
o
m
m
e
n
d
a
ti
o
n
 

 
W
h
e
re
 w
e
 a
re
 u
p
 t
o
  

S
ta
g
e
 

C
o
m
p
le
te
 

1
 

T
h
a
t 
E
d
u
c
a
ti
o
n
 L
e
e
d
s
 s
h
o
u
ld
 

a
lw
a
y
s
 s
h
o
w
 a
 f
u
ll
 a
n
a
ly
s
is
 o
f 

th
e
 f
a
c
to
rs
 i
t 
h
a
s
 t
a
k
e
n
 i
n
to
 

c
o
n
s
id
e
ra
ti
o
n
 i
n
 i
ts
 p
ro
je
c
ti
o
n
s
 

o
f 
d
e
m
a
n
d
 f
o
r 
p
u
p
il
 p
la
c
e
s
, 
a
n
d
 

th
a
t 
it
 r
e
p
o
rt
s
 b
a
c
k
 t
o
 t
h
e
 

S
c
ru
ti
n
y
 B
o
a
rd
 w
it
h
in
 3
 m
o
n
th
s
 

a
s
 t
o
 h
o
w
 t
h
is
 w
il
l 
b
e
 a
c
h
ie
v
e
d
, 

u
s
in
g
 F
o
u
n
ta
in
 P
ri
m
a
ry
 S
c
h
o
o
l 

a
s
 a
 p
a
rt
ic
u
la
r 
e
x
a
m
p
le
 t
o
 

d
e
m
o
n
s
tr
a
te
 t
h
is
. 

 

F
e
b
ru
a
ry
 2
0
0
8
 p
o
s
it
io
n
 

In
 a
d
d
it
io
n
 t
o
 u
ti
lis
in
g
 t
h
e
 e
x
is
ti
n
g
 s
y
s
te
m
s
 w
h
ic
h
 h
a
v
e
 p
ro
v
e
d
 t
o
 b
e
 r
o
b
u
s
t 

d
u
ri
n
g
 t
h
e
 c
lo
s
u
re
 a
n
d
 o
p
e
n
in
g
 o
f 
a
lm
o
s
t 
8
0
 s
c
h
o
o
ls
 E
d
u
c
a
ti
o
n
 L
e
e
d
s
 w
ill
 

d
e
v
e
lo
p
 a
 t
ra
n
s
p
a
re
n
t 
s
y
s
te
m
 f
o
r 
re
p
o
rt
in
g
 t
h
e
 d
e
m
o
g
ra
p
h
ic
 p
la
n
n
in
g
 r
is
k
s
 

a
s
s
o
c
ia
te
d
 w
it
h
 a
 p
ro
p
o
s
e
d
 s
c
h
o
o
l 
re
o
rg
a
n
is
a
ti
o
n
. 
 T
h
is
 c
o
u
ld
 i
n
c
lu
d
e
 f
o
r 

e
x
a
m
p
le
 t
h
e
 n
u
m
b
e
r 
o
f 
s
c
h
o
o
ls
 i
n
v
o
lv
e
d
, 
th
e
ir
 l
o
c
a
ti
o
n
 i
n
 t
h
e
 c
it
y
, 
th
e
 p
a
s
t 

re
lia
b
ili
ty
 o
f 
p
ro
je
c
ti
o
n
s
 i
n
 t
h
e
 a
re
a
 e
tc
. 

 A
n
 o
ff
ic
e
r 
w
it
h
in
 t
h
e
 s
c
h
o
o
l 
o
rg
a
n
is
a
ti
o
n
 t
e
a
m
 h
a
s
 b
e
e
n
 i
d
e
n
ti
fi
e
d
 t
o
 p
ro
g
re
s
s
 

th
is
 w
o
rk
. 
 T
h
e
 s
y
s
te
m
 f
o
r 
a
s
s
e
s
s
in
g
 r
is
k
 w
ill
 b
e
 r
e
p
o
rt
e
d
 t
o
 S
c
ru
ti
n
y
 a
t 
it
s
 J
u
n
e
 

m
e
e
ti
n
g
. 

 J
u
ly
 2
0
0
8
 U
p
d
a
te
 

T
o
 e
n
s
u
re
 a
 f
u
ll
, 
c
le
a
r 
e
x
p
la
n
a
ti
o
n
 i
s
 s
h
o
w
n
, 
E
d
u
c
a
ti
o
n
 L
e
e
d
s
 i
s
 r
e
v
ie
w
in
g
 

th
e
 i
n
fo
rm

a
ti
o
n
/e
x
p
la
n
a
ti
o
n
 i
t 
u
s
e
s
 t
o
 s
u
p
p
o
rt
 i
ts
 m
e
th
o
d
o
lo
g
y
. 

 T
h
e
 r
e
v
is
e
d
 i
n
fo
rm

a
ti
o
n
 w
il
l 
b
e
 u
s
e
d
 f
o
r 
th
e
 u
p
d
a
te
d
 p
u
p
il
 p
ro
je
c
ti
o
n
s
 f
o
r 

s
c
h
o
o
ls
, 
c
u
rr
e
n
tl
y
 b
e
in
g
 c
o
m
p
le
te
d
 b
y
 t
h
e
 S
c
h
o
o
l 
O
rg
a
n
is
a
ti
o
n
 T
e
a
m
 a
n
d
 

d
u
e
 t
o
 b
e
 a
v
a
il
a
b
le
 o
n
-l
in
e
 i
n
 t
h
e
 n
e
x
t 
tw
o
 m
o
n
th
s
. 

  

4
 o
r 
5
 

(n
o
t 

a
c
h
ie
v
e
d
) 

 
B
o
a
rd
 t
o
 

d
e
te
rm

in
e
 

w
h
e
th
e
r 
 

p
ro
g
re
s
s
 

is
  

a
c
c
e
p
ta
b
le
 

 

3
 

T
h
a
t 
th
e
 F
o
u
n
ta
in
 P
ri
m
a
ry
 

S
c
h
o
o
l 
b
u
il
d
in
g
 p
ro
je
c
t 
b
e
 g
iv
e
n
 

p
ri
o
ri
ty
 a
n
d
 s
u
ff
ic
ie
n
t 
fu
n
d
in
g
 

b
y
 E
d
u
c
a
ti
o
n
 L
e
e
d
s
 a
n
d
 t
h
e
 

C
o
u
n
c
il
. 

 T
h
a
t 
a
 p
ro
g
re
s
s
 r
e
p
o
rt
 r
e
la
ti
n
g
 

to
 t
h
is
 p
ro
je
c
t 
is
 r
e
p
o
rt
e
d
 b
a
c
k
 

to
 S
c
ru
ti
n
y
 w
it
h
in
 3
 m
o
n
th
s
. 

 

F
e
b
ru
a
ry
 2
0
0
8
 p
o
s
it
io
n
 

E
d
u
c
a
ti
o
n
 L
e
e
d
s
, 
th
ro
u
g
h
 i
ts
 r
e
p
re
s
e
n
ta
ti
o
n
 t
o
 A
s
s
e
t 
M
a
n
a
g
e
m
e
n
t 
G
ro
u
p
, 
h
a
s
 

s
e
c
u
re
d
 a
p
p
ro
v
a
l 
to
 a
c
c
e
s
s
 a
 c
a
p
it
a
l 
re
c
e
ip
t 
to
 b
e
 g
e
n
e
ra
te
d
 f
o
r 
th
e
 d
is
p
o
s
a
l 
o
f 

th
e
 c
u
rr
e
n
t 
F
o
u
n
ta
in
 I
n
fa
n
ts
 B
u
ild
in
g
. 
T
h
e
 r
e
c
e
ip
t 
w
ill
 b
e
 s
u
p
p
le
m
e
n
te
d
 w
it
h
 a
n
 

a
llo
c
a
ti
o
n
 f
ro
m
 t
h
e
 E
d
u
c
a
ti
o
n
 L
e
e
d
s
 C
a
p
it
a
l 
P
ro
g
ra
m
m
e
 a
n
d
 w
ill
 p
ro
v
id
e
 t
h
e
 

fu
n
d
in
g
 t
o
 e
x
te
n
d
 t
h
e
 m
a
in
 b
u
ild
in
g
 a
n
d
 b
ri
n
g
 t
h
e
 s
c
h
o
o
l 
o
n
to
 o
n
e
 s
it
e
. 
T
h
e
 

s
c
h
e
m
e
 i
s
 c
u
rr
e
n
tl
y
 i
n
 d
e
s
ig
n
 a
n
d
 w
ill
 b
e
 t
h
e
 s
u
b
je
c
t 
o
f 
a
n
 A
u
th
o
ri
ty
 t
o
 S
p
e
n
d
 

re
p
o
rt
 t
o
 t
h
e
 E
x
e
c
u
ti
v
e
 B
o
a
rd
 i
n
 M
a
rc
h
 o
r 
A
p
ri
l 
2
0
0
8
. 

 J
u
ly
 2
0
0
8
 U
p
d
a
te
 

T
h
e
 p
ro
p
o
s
a
ls
 w
e
re
 a
g
re
e
d
 b
y
 t
h
e
 E
x
e
c
u
ti
v
e
 B
o
a
rd
 i
n
 M
a
rc
h
 2
0
0
8
. 

2
 

(A
c
h
ie
v
e
d
) 

ü üüü
 

Page 43



F
o
u
n
ta
in
 P
ri
m
a
ry
 S
c
h
o
o
l  

 
R
e
p
o
rt
 p
u
b
li
s
h
e
d
 N
o
v
e
m
b
e
r 
2
0
0
7
 

 
L
a
s
t 
u
p
d
a
te
 r
e
c
e
iv
e
d
 J
u
ly
 2
0
0
8
 

  
R
e
c
o
m
m
e
n
d
a
ti
o
n
 

 
W
h
e
re
 w
e
 a
re
 u
p
 t
o
  

S
ta
g
e
 

C
o
m
p
le
te
 

9
 

T
h
a
t 
th
e
 G
o
v
e
rn
in
g
 B
o
d
y
 o
f 

F
o
u
n
ta
in
 P
ri
m
a
ry
 S
c
h
o
o
l 
e
n
te
rs
 

in
to
 e
a
rl
y
 b
u
d
g
e
ta
ry
 

d
is
c
u
s
s
io
n
s
 w
it
h
 E
d
u
c
a
ti
o
n
 

L
e
e
d
s
 t
o
 r
e
v
ie
w
 t
h
e
 s
c
h
o
o
l’
s
 

c
u
rr
e
n
t 
p
o
s
it
io
n
 s
o
 t
h
a
t 
a
n
y
 

n
e
c
e
s
s
a
ry
 f
u
rt
h
e
r 
re
a
d
ju
s
tm
e
n
ts
 

to
 c
la
s
s
 o
rg
a
n
is
a
ti
o
n
 a
n
d
 

s
ta
ff
in
g
 s
tr
u
c
tu
re
s
 a
re
 c
a
rr
ie
d
 

o
u
t 
w
it
h
 t
h
e
 l
e
a
s
t 
a
m
o
u
n
t 
o
f 

d
is
ru
p
ti
o
n
 p
o
s
s
ib
le
. 

 

F
e
b
ru
a
ry
 2
0
0
8
 p
o
s
it
io
n
 

S
u
p
p
o
rt
 c
o
n
ti
n
u
e
s
 t
o
 b
e
 p
ro
v
id
e
d
 t
h
ro
u
g
h
 t
h
e
 s
c
h
o
o
l’s
 l
in
k
 f
in
a
n
c
e
, 
H
R
, 
T
e
a
m
 

L
e
a
d
e
r 
o
f 
F
in
a
n
c
ia
l 
S
e
rv
ic
e
s
 a
n
d
 s
c
h
o
o
l 
im
p
ro
v
e
m
e
n
t 
a
d
v
is
o
rs
. 
 D
e
ta
ile
d
 p
la
n
s
 

fo
r 
m
a
n
a
g
in
g
 s
ta
ff
in
g
 r
e
d
u
c
ti
o
n
s
 a
re
 i
m
p
le
m
e
n
te
d
 a
n
d
 a
n
 a
c
c
e
p
ta
b
le
 r
e
v
is
e
d
 

fi
n
a
n
c
ia
l 
re
c
o
v
e
ry
 p
la
n
 p
ro
d
u
c
e
d
 b
y
 t
h
e
 g
o
v
e
rn
in
g
 b
o
d
y
. 

 3
 s
c
h
o
o
l 
v
is
it
s
 b
y
 f
in
a
n
c
e
 o
ff
ic
e
r 
s
in
c
e
 1
3
/1
2
/2
0
0
7
. 

2
 s
c
h
o
o
l 
v
is
it
s
 b
y
 H
R
 a
d
v
is
e
r 
s
in
c
e
 1
4
/1
2
/2
0
0
7
 w
it
h
 2
 f
u
rt
h
e
r 
v
is
it
s
 p
la
n
n
e
d
 

d
u
ri
n
g
 M
S
R
 p
ro
c
e
s
s
. 
  
0
 s
c
h
o
o
l 
v
is
it
s
 b
y
 s
c
h
o
o
l 
im
p
ro
v
e
m
e
n
t 
a
d
v
is
e
r.
  
M
e
e
ti
n
g
 

c
o
n
v
e
n
e
d
 i
n
 D
e
c
e
m
b
e
r 
in
v
o
lv
in
g
 s
e
n
io
r 
m
a
n
a
g
e
r 
o
f 
E
d
u
c
a
ti
o
n
 L
e
e
d
s
, 
s
c
h
o
o
l 

re
p
re
s
e
n
ta
ti
v
e
s
, 
a
n
d
 r
e
le
v
a
n
t 
e
le
c
te
d
 m
e
m
b
e
rs
 t
o
 c
o
n
s
id
e
r 
fu
ll 
ra
n
g
e
 o
f 
a
c
ti
o
n
s
 

a
v
a
ila
b
le
 t
o
 g
o
v
e
rn
o
rs
 a
n
d
 a
p
p
ro
p
ri
a
te
n
e
s
s
 o
f 
s
u
p
p
o
rt
 f
ro
m
 E
d
u
c
a
ti
o
n
 L
e
e
d
s
. 

 J
u
ly
 2
0
0
8
 U
p
d
a
te
 

T
h
e
re
 i
s
 o
n
g
o
in
g
 w
o
rk
 w
it
h
 t
h
e
 s
c
h
o
o
l.
 S
ta
ff
in
g
 r
e
d
u
c
ti
o
n
s
 a
re
 a
c
h
ie
v
e
d
 

th
ro
u
g
h
 t
o
 S
e
p
te
m
b
e
r 
2
0
0
9
 w
it
h
o
u
t 
d
is
ru
p
ti
o
n
 t
o
 t
h
e
 w
o
rk
 o
f 
th
e
 s
c
h
o
o
l.
 

 

2
 

(A
c
h
ie
v
e
d
)  

ü üüü
 

 

Page 44



 
Report of the Director of Children’s Services  
 
Scrutiny Board (Children’s Services) 
 
Date: 17th July 2008 
 
Subject:  Children and Young People’s Plan 2009: Consultation Process 
 

        
 
 
 
 
1.0 Purpose of report 
 
1.1 The purpose of this report is to explain to the Board the arrangements for developing 

the next Leeds Children and Young People’s Plan, and to set out how the Board will 
be involved. 

2.0 Background 
 
2.1 The Children Act requires all Local Authorities to work with their local partners to 

develop a Children and Young People’s Plan (CYPP). The purpose of this plan is to 
be the single, over-arching strategy which sets out how all local services will work 
together to improve the lives of children and young people. 

2.2 The first Leeds CYPP was developed and approved in 2005-2006. The plan covers 
the years 2006-2009 and so is now in its final year. As such work is now underway to 
develop a new CYPP which will set out the overall strategy, key outcomes and 
improvement priorities for the next five years. 

3.0 Arrangements for developing the plan 
 
3.1 The arrangements for developing the new plan aim to involve all local services, 

partners and children and young people in line with the successful work in 2005 that 
involved thousands of children, young people, parents and frontline staff. This time 
this will be easier as it can build on existing arrangements and the valuable 
information gained in the recent CYPP Review and also the feedback from 
inspections in the Joint Area Review and Annual Performance Assessment.  

Specific Implications For: 
 
Equality and Diversity 
  
Community Cohesion 
 
Narrowing the Gap 
 

Electoral Wards Affected:  All 

 

 

 

 

Originator: John Maynard 
 
Tel: 247 4189  

Agenda Item 9

Page 45



3.2 The timescale for developing the plan is set out below: 

• January – June 2008. CYPP Review – analysis on outcomes and progress to 
date. Consultation with partners, staff and Elected Members to inform review 

• June – September 2008. Consultation for CYPP [See appendix A]. All partner 
agencies asked to provide input through existing forums and Boards.  

• September - October 2008. Workshops with elected members, Children Leeds 
Partnership, Integrated Strategic Commissioning Board (ISCB) to agree key 
outcomes and improvement priorities. 

• October 2008 – December 2008. Further development of plan. Emerging priorities 
used to inform budget, commissioning and operational planning. These in turn 
provide detail for action plans in CYPP.  

• January 2009 – March 2009. Consultation and approval of CYPP. To include 
Scrutiny Board, Children Leeds Partnership, ISCB, Executive Board and Full 
Council. 

3.3  A standard feedback form and consultation pack are available on the Children
  Leeds website.  These are attached at appendix A and B respectively.  

4.0 Recommendations 
 
3.1 The Board is requested to:- 
 

(i) Agree to the proposed arrangements for involving the Board in developing the 
new CYPP. 

 

Page 46



 

•  

•  

•  

• 

 

•  

•  

•  

•  

•  

•  

•  

• 

Page 47



 

•  

• 

Page 48



 •  

•  

• 

 

• 

 

• 

 

• 

 • 

 

•  

• 

 

• 

 • 

 

• 

 

•  

• 

 

• 

 

• 

 

• 

 

• 

 

• 

 

• 

 

• 

 

• 

 

• 

 

• 

 • 

 

• 

 

• 

 

• 

 

• 

 

• 

 

•  

• 

Page 49



 

• 

 

• 

 

• 

 

• 

 

• 

 

• 

Page 50



 

• 

 

• 

 

• 

 

• 

 

• 

 

• 

 

• 

 

• 

 

• 

 

• 

 

• 

 

• 

Page 51



 

• 

 

•  

•  

• 

 

• 

 

• 

 

•  

•  

•  

•  

•  

• 

 

•  

•  

• 

 

• 

 

•  

• 

Page 52



 

•  

• 

 • 

 • 

 • 

 • 

 

• 

 • 

 

• 

 

• 

 •  

• 

 • 

 • 

 • 

 • 

Page 53



Page 54



 

- 1 - 

Feedback Form 

Priorities for the Children and Young People’s Plan (CYPP) for 
2009 - 2014 

 

1) Your details 
 

Name  
 

Organisation  
 

 

2 ) Progress against the CYPP - 2006 to 2009 
 
2a) What are the successes of the last three years and what can we learn from this?  
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
2b) What are the main challenges that we still face? 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 

Page 55



 

- 2 - 

3) Priorities and plans for the next year 
 
3a) CYPP priorities for 2009 - 2014 
 
What do you think our five key priorities should be for the next five years? Please give a 
brief explanation as to why you think these issues are important.   
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
3b) What are the big changes that we need to make to achieve these priorities?  
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 

4) Further comments 
 

Please use this section to provide any additional information or comments that will assist 
with the development of the priorities for the new Children and Young People’s Plan.  
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
Thank you for taking the time to complete this form. Please return the form to 

children.leeds@leeds.gov.uk or to CYPP 2009, 6th Floor East Merrion House, 110 Merrion 
Centre, Leeds, LS2 8DT 

Page 56



 
Report of the Head of Scrutiny and Member Development 
 
Scrutiny Board (Children’s Services) 
 
Date: 17 July 2008 
 
Subject: Work Programme 
 

        
 
 
1.0 Introduction 
 
1.1 A copy of the board’s draft work programme is attached for members’ consideration 

(appendix 1).  
 
1.2 The attached chart reflects the discussions at the board’s June meeting, and potential 

items identified during 2007/08. In relation to each issue, a proposal has been set out. 
These proposals are then reflected in the draft work programme which follows. 

 
1.3 The board is asked to consider which issues should be taken forward through the 

year, bearing in mind the need to create a manageable programme of work. 
 
 
2.0 Recommendation 
 
2.1 The board is requested to agree the attached work programme subject to any 

decisions made at today’s meeting. 

 

Specific Implications For:  

 
Equality and Diversity 
  
Community Cohesion 
 
Narrowing the Gap 

Electoral Wards Affected:  

 
 

 

 

Originator: Kate Arscott 
 
Tel: 247 4189 

Agenda Item 10

Page 57



Page 58

This page is intentionally left blank



S
c
ru
ti
n
y
 B
o
a
rd
 (
C
h
il
d
re
n
’s
 S
e
rv
ic
e
s
) 
 

D
ra
ft
 W

o
rk
 P
ro
g
ra
m
m
e
 2
0
0
8
/0
9
  

It
e
m
 

D
e
s
c
ri
p
ti
o
n
 

S
u
g
g
e
s
ti
o
n
 

T
y
p
e
 o
f 

it
e
m
 

P
o
s
s
ib
le
 i
te
m
s
 f
o
r 
2
0
0
8
/0
9
 w
o
rk
 p
ro
g
ra
m
m
e
 f
ro
m
 2
0
0
7
/0
8
 

T
e
e
n
a
g
e
 C
o
n
c
e
p
ti
o
n
 

T
h
e
 S
c
ru
ti
n
y
 B
o
a
rd
 (
H
e
a
lt
h
 a
n
d
 A
d
u
lt
 

S
o
c
ia
l 
C
a
re
) 
p
u
b
lis
h
e
d
 a
 S
ta
te
m
e
n
t 
fr
o
m
 

th
e
 T
e
e
n
a
g
e
 P
re
g
n
a
n
c
y
 W
o
rk
in
g
 G
ro
u
p
 

in
 A
p
ri
l 
2
0
0
8
. 
 

 It
 r
e
c
o
m
m
e
n
d
s
 t
h
a
t 
fu
rt
h
e
r 
s
c
ru
ti
n
y
, 
in
 

th
e
 f
o
rm
 o
f 
a
 f
u
ll 
in
q
u
ir
y
, 
b
e
 c
a
rr
ie
d
 o
u
t 

in
to
 t
e
e
n
a
g
e
 c
o
n
c
e
p
ti
o
n
s
 d
u
ri
n
g
 t
h
e
 

m
u
n
ic
ip
a
l 
y
e
a
r 
2
0
0
8
/0
9
. 

P
ro
p
o
s
e
 t
h
a
t 
S
c
ru
ti
n
y
 B
o
a
rd
 (
H
e
a
lt
h
) 
is
 t
h
e
 

m
o
s
t 
a
p
p
ro
p
ri
a
te
 B
o
a
rd
 t
o
 l
e
a
d
 o
n
 t
h
is
 i
n
q
u
ir
y
. 
 

 S
u
g
g
e
s
t 
th
a
t 
th
e
 H
e
a
lt
h
 B
o
a
rd
 i
s
 a
s
k
e
d
 t
o
 

c
o
n
s
id
e
r 
c
o
-o
p
ti
n
g
 o
n
e
 o
r 
tw
o
 C
h
ild
re
n
’s
 

S
e
rv
ic
e
s
 B
o
a
rd
 M
e
m
b
e
rs
 t
o
 j
o
in
 t
h
e
 I
n
q
u
ir
y
. 

 

E
d
u
c
a
ti
o
n
 S
ta
n
d
a
rd
s
 

L
a
s
t 
y
e
a
r 
th
e
 B
o
a
rd
 m
a
d
e
 a
 s
tr
o
n
g
 

re
c
o
m
m
e
n
d
a
ti
o
n
 t
h
a
t 
a
n
 i
n
q
u
ir
y
 i
s
 

p
ri
o
ri
ti
s
e
d
 i
n
 2
0
0
8
/0
9
 o
n
 t
h
o
s
e
 e
n
te
ri
n
g
 

th
e
 e
d
u
c
a
ti
o
n
 s
y
s
te
m
. 

 

P
ro
p
o
s
e
 t
h
a
t 
th
e
 B
o
a
rd
 c
o
n
s
id
e
rs
 w
h
e
th
e
r 
th
is
 

is
 s
ti
ll 
a
 p
ri
o
ri
ty
 a
re
a
 f
o
r 
a
n
 i
n
q
u
ir
y
. 
If
 i
t 
is
, 
a
 

w
o
rk
in
g
 g
ro
u
p
 c
o
u
ld
 b
e
 s
e
t 
u
p
 t
o
 s
c
o
p
e
 t
h
e
 

in
q
u
ir
y
 o
v
e
r 
th
e
 s
u
m
m
e
r 
p
e
ri
o
d
 a
n
d
 b
ri
n
g
 d
ra
ft
 

te
rm
s
 o
f 
re
fe
re
n
c
e
 t
o
 t
h
e
 B
o
a
rd
 m
e
e
ti
n
g
 i
n
 

S
e
p
te
m
b
e
r.
 

 

P
o
s
s
ib
le
 i
te
m
s
 f
o
r 
2
0
0
7
/0
8
 w
o
rk
 p
ro
g
ra
m
m
e
 f
ro
m
 J
u
n
e
 m

e
e
ti
n
g
 

1
4
-1
9
 e
d
u
c
a
ti
o
n
 

A
 n
u
m
b
e
r 
o
f 
is
s
u
e
s
 w
e
re
 r
a
is
e
d
 a
s
 

p
o
te
n
ti
a
l 
to
p
ic
s
, 
in
c
lu
d
in
g
: 

•
 
1
4
-1
9
 c
u
rr
ic
u
lu
m
 

•
 
D
ip
lo
m
a
s
 

•
 
R
e
o
rg
a
n
is
a
ti
o
n
 o
f 
p
o
s
t-
1
6
 e
d
u
c
a
ti
o
n
 

•
 
1
4
-1
9
 r
e
v
ie
w
 a
n
d
 p
ro
v
is
io
n
 f
o
r 
p
u
p
ils
 

w
it
h
 l
e
a
rn
in
g
 d
if
fi
c
u
lt
ie
s
 a
n
d
 

d
is
a
b
ili
ti
e
s
 

P
ro
p
o
s
e
 t
h
a
t 
th
e
 B
o
a
rd
 c
a
rr
ie
s
 o
u
t 
a
 f
u
rt
h
e
r 

in
q
u
ir
y
 o
n
 p
ro
g
re
s
s
 w
it
h
 t
h
e
 1
4
-1
9
 a
g
e
n
d
a
. 
 

 A
 w
o
rk
in
g
 g
ro
u
p
 c
o
u
ld
 b
e
 s
e
t 
u
p
 t
o
 s
c
o
p
e
 t
h
e
 

in
q
u
ir
y
 o
v
e
r 
th
e
 s
u
m
m
e
r 
p
e
ri
o
d
 a
n
d
 b
ri
n
g
 d
ra
ft
 

te
rm
s
 o
f 
re
fe
re
n
c
e
 t
o
 t
h
e
 B
o
a
rd
 m
e
e
ti
n
g
 i
n
 

S
e
p
te
m
b
e
r.
 

 

C
o
m
m
is
s
io
n
in
g
  

 

T
h
is
 w
a
s
 r
a
is
e
d
 e
s
p
e
c
ia
lly
 i
n
 r
e
la
ti
o
n
 t
o
  

th
e
 v
o
lu
n
ta
ry
, 
c
o
m
m
u
n
it
y
 a
n
d
 f
a
it
h
 

s
e
c
to
r.
 

P
ro
p
o
s
e
 a
 b
ri
e
fi
n
g
 p
a
p
e
r 
in
 t
h
e
 f
ir
s
t 
in
s
ta
n
c
e
 

to
 t
h
e
 S
e
p
te
m
b
e
r 
m
e
e
ti
n
g
 o
n
 t
h
e
 c
u
rr
e
n
t 

a
rr
a
n
g
e
m
e
n
ts
 f
o
r 
c
o
m
m
is
s
io
n
in
g
 t
h
ro
u
g
h
 

C
h
ild
re
n
 L
e
e
d
s
. 

 

Page 59



S
c
ru
ti
n
y
 B
o
a
rd
 (
C
h
il
d
re
n
’s
 S
e
rv
ic
e
s
) 
 

D
ra
ft
 W

o
rk
 P
ro
g
ra
m
m
e
 2
0
0
8
/0
9
  

 

It
e
m
 

D
e
s
c
ri
p
ti
o
n
 

N
o
te
s
 

T
y
p
e
 o
f 

it
e
m
 

A
tt
e
n
d
a
n
c
e
 

A
 n
u
m
b
e
r 
o
f 
lin
k
e
d
 i
s
s
u
e
s
 w
e
re
 r
a
is
e
d
, 

in
c
lu
d
in
g
: 

•
 
A
tt
e
n
d
a
n
c
e
 

•
 
E
a
rl
y
 i
d
e
n
ti
fi
c
a
ti
o
n
 o
f 
p
u
p
ils
 w
h
o
 m
a
y
 

b
e
c
o
m
e
 N
E
E
T
 (
n
o
t 
in
 e
d
u
c
a
ti
o
n
, 

e
m
p
lo
y
m
e
n
t 
o
r 
tr
a
in
in
g
) 

•
 
C
h
ild
re
n
 m
is
s
in
g
 f
ro
m
 e
d
u
c
a
ti
o
n
 

•
 
A
c
h
ie
v
e
m
e
n
t 
o
f 
lo
o
k
e
d
 a
ft
e
r 
c
h
ild
re
n
 

T
h
e
s
e
 c
o
u
ld
 b
e
 l
in
k
e
d
 a
s
 a
n
 i
n
q
u
ir
y
 o
r 
w
o
rk
in
g
 

g
ro
u
p
 t
o
p
ic
. 

 

T
ra
n
s
p
o
rt
 

 
C
o
n
s
id
e
r 
fu
rt
h
e
r 
in
 t
h
e
 l
ig
h
t 
o
f 
th
e
 r
e
s
p
o
n
s
e
 t
o
 

re
c
o
m
m
e
n
d
a
ti
o
n
 9
 o
f 
th
e
 i
n
q
u
ir
y
 i
n
to
 ‘
s
e
rv
ic
e
s
 

fo
r 
8
-1
3
 y
e
a
r 
o
ld
s
’ 
d
u
e
 i
n
 S
e
p
te
m
b
e
r,
 a
n
d
 t
h
e
 

o
u
tc
o
m
e
 o
f 
th
e
 c
u
rr
e
n
t 
in
te
rn
a
l 
a
u
d
it
 r
e
v
ie
w
. 

 P
o
te
n
ti
a
l 
w
o
rk
in
g
 g
ro
u
p
 i
s
s
u
e
 

 

‘N
a
ti
o
n
a
l 
C
h
a
ll
e
n
g
e
’ 

p
ro
g
ra
m
m
e
 

T
h
is
 i
s
 t
h
e
 g
o
v
e
rn
m
e
n
t’
s
 p
ro
g
ra
m
m
e
 f
o
r 

s
e
c
o
n
d
a
ry
 s
c
h
o
o
ls
 w
h
ic
h
 d
o
 n
o
t 
m
e
e
t 

th
e
 n
a
ti
o
n
a
l 
fl
o
o
r 
ta
rg
e
ts
  

S
u
g
g
e
s
t 
th
a
t 
th
e
 L
e
e
d
s
 r
e
s
p
o
n
s
e
 i
s
 t
ra
c
k
e
d
 a
s
 

p
a
rt
 o
f 
th
e
 q
u
a
rt
e
rl
y
 o
v
e
rv
ie
w
 r
e
p
o
rt
in
g
 b
y
 t
h
e
 

D
ir
e
c
to
r 
o
f 
C
h
ild
re
n
’s
 S
e
rv
ic
e
s
. 

 A
ls
o
 l
in
k
s
 t
o
 1
4
-1
9
 e
d
u
c
a
ti
o
n
 i
te
m
 a
b
o
v
e
. 

 

C
o
m
m
u
n
it
y
 C
o
h
e
s
io
n
 

T
h
is
 w
a
s
 l
in
k
e
d
 t
o
 e
x
te
n
d
e
d
 s
e
rv
ic
e
s
 

w
o
rk
. 

T
h
e
 B
o
a
rd
 h
a
s
 l
o
o
k
e
d
 a
t 
e
x
te
n
d
e
d
 s
e
rv
ic
e
s
 

e
x
te
n
s
iv
e
ly
 a
s
 p
a
rt
 o
f 
it
s
 i
n
q
u
ir
ie
s
 i
n
to
 ‘
y
o
u
th
 

s
e
rv
ic
e
s
’ 
a
n
d
 ‘
s
e
rv
ic
e
s
 f
o
r 
8
-1
3
 y
e
a
r 
o
ld
s
’ 
o
v
e
r 

th
e
 p
a
s
t 
tw
o
 y
e
a
rs
. 

 S
u
g
g
e
s
t 
th
a
t 
th
e
 E
n
v
ir
o
n
m
e
n
t 
a
n
d
 

N
e
ig
h
b
o
u
rh
o
o
d
s
 B
o
a
rd
 i
s
 a
s
k
e
d
 t
o
 c
o
n
s
id
e
r 

c
o
-o
p
ti
n
g
 a
 C
h
ild
re
n
’s
 S
e
rv
ic
e
s
 B
o
a
rd
 

M
e
m
b
e
r 
in
 r
e
la
ti
o
n
 t
o
 a
n
y
 w
o
rk
 t
h
a
t 
B
o
a
rd
 

u
n
d
e
rt
a
k
e
s
 o
n
 c
o
m
m
u
n
it
y
 c
o
h
e
s
io
n
. 

 

 

Page 60



S
c
ru
ti
n
y
 B
o
a
rd
 (
C
h
il
d
re
n
’s
 S
e
rv
ic
e
s
) 
 

D
ra
ft
 W

o
rk
 P
ro
g
ra
m
m
e
 2
0
0
8
/0
9
  

  

It
e
m
 

D
e
s
c
ri
p
ti
o
n
 

N
o
te
s
 

T
y
p
e
 

o
f 
it
e
m
 

M
e
e
ti
n
g
 d
a
te
 –
 1
8
 S
e
p
te
m
b
e
r 
2
0
0
8
 

F
o
rm

a
l 
re
s
p
o
n
s
e
s
 t
o
 

S
c
ru
ti
n
y
 B
o
a
rd
 

re
c
o
m
m
e
n
d
a
ti
o
n
s
 

T
o
 r
e
c
e
iv
e
 t
h
e
 f
o
rm

a
l 
re
s
p
o
n
s
e
 t
o
 t
h
e
 

fo
llo
w
in
g
 f
in
a
l 
in
q
u
ir
y
 r
e
p
o
rt
: 

•
 
S
e
rv
ic
e
s
 f
o
r 
8
-1
3
 y
e
a
r 
o
ld
s
 

 
M
S
R
 

C
o
m
m
is
s
io
n
in
g
 

T
o
 r
e
c
e
iv
e
 a
 b
ri
e
fi
n
g
 p
a
p
e
r 
o
n
 t
h
e
 

c
u
rr
e
n
t 
a
rr
a
n
g
e
m
e
n
ts
 f
o
r 

c
o
m
m
is
s
io
n
in
g
 t
h
ro
u
g
h
 C
h
ild
re
n
 L
e
e
d
s
 

T
h
is
 w
a
s
 r
a
is
e
d
 e
s
p
e
c
ia
lly
 i
n
 r
e
la
ti
o
n
 t
o
 t
h
e
 

ro
le
 o
f 
th
e
 v
o
lu
n
ta
ry
, 
c
o
m
m
u
n
it
y
 a
n
d
 f
a
it
h
 

s
e
c
to
r 

B
 

T
e
rm

s
 o
f 
R
e
fe
re
n
c
e
 

T
o
 a
g
re
e
 t
h
e
 t
e
rm

s
 o
f 
re
fe
re
n
c
e
 f
o
r 
th
e
 

B
o
a
rd
’s
 m
a
in
 i
n
q
u
ir
ie
s
 

S
u
b
je
c
t 
to
 c
o
n
fi
rm

a
ti
o
n
 o
f 
th
e
 c
h
o
s
e
n
 t
o
p
ic
s
 

in
 J
u
ly
 2
0
0
8
. 

 

M
e
e
ti
n
g
 d
a
te
 –
  
1
6
 O
c
to
b
e
r 
2
0
0
8
 

P
e
rf
o
rm

a
n
c
e
 M
a
n
a
g
e
m
e
n
t 
 
Q
u
a
rt
e
r 
1
 i
n
fo
rm

a
ti
o
n
 f
o
r 
2
0
0
8
/0
9
 (
A
p
ri
l 

- 
J
u
n
e
) 

A
ll 
S
c
ru
ti
n
y
 B
o
a
rd
s
 r
e
c
e
iv
e
 p
e
rf
o
rm

a
n
c
e
 

in
fo
rm

a
ti
o
n
 o
n
 a
 q
u
a
rt
e
rl
y
 b
a
s
is
 

P
M
 

C
h
il
d
re
n
’s
 S
e
rv
ic
e
s
 a
n
d
 

th
e
 C
h
il
d
re
n
 a
n
d
 Y
o
u
n
g
 

P
e
o
p
le
’s
 P
la
n
 

T
o
 m
a
in
ta
in
 a
n
 o
v
e
rv
ie
w
 a
c
ro
s
s
 t
h
e
 

B
o
a
rd
’s
 p
o
rt
fo
lio
, 
a
n
d
 t
o
 m
o
n
it
o
r 
th
e
 

d
e
v
e
lo
p
m
e
n
t 
o
f 
th
e
 C
h
ild
re
n
’s
 S
e
rv
ic
e
s
 

a
rr
a
n
g
e
m
e
n
ts
 i
n
 L
e
e
d
s
 

T
h
e
 B
o
a
rd
 h
a
s
 a
g
re
e
d
 t
o
 m
o
n
it
o
r 
p
ro
g
re
s
s
 

a
g
a
in
s
t 
th
e
 p
ri
o
ri
ti
e
s
 i
n
 t
h
e
 P
la
n
 o
n
 a
 

q
u
a
rt
e
rl
y
 b
a
s
is
 

P
M
 

R
e
c
o
m
m
e
n
d
a
ti
o
n
 

T
ra
c
k
in
g
 

T
h
is
 i
te
m
 t
ra
c
k
 p
ro
g
re
s
s
 w
it
h
 p
re
v
io
u
s
 

S
c
ru
ti
n
y
 r
e
c
o
m
m
e
n
d
a
ti
o
n
s
 o
n
 a
 

q
u
a
rt
e
rl
y
 b
a
s
is
 

 
M
S
R
 

O
fs
te
d
 I
n
s
p
e
c
ti
o
n
s
  

 
B
ia
n
n
u
a
l 
u
p
d
a
te
 o
n
 O
fs
te
d
 I
n
s
p
e
c
ti
o
n
s
 

a
n
d
 s
c
h
o
o
ls
 c
a
u
s
in
g
 c
o
n
c
e
rn
 

 

T
h
e
 S
c
ru
ti
n
y
 B
o
a
rd
 a
g
re
e
d
 i
n
 2
0
0
6
/0
7
 t
o
 

c
o
n
s
id
e
r 
th
e
s
e
 r
e
p
o
rt
s
 t
o
 E
x
e
c
u
ti
v
e
 B
o
a
rd
 

P
M
 

 
 

 
 

 

Page 61



S
c
ru
ti
n
y
 B
o
a
rd
 (
C
h
il
d
re
n
’s
 S
e
rv
ic
e
s
) 
 

D
ra
ft
 W

o
rk
 P
ro
g
ra
m
m
e
 2
0
0
8
/0
9
  

 

It
e
m
 

D
e
s
c
ri
p
ti
o
n
 

N
o
te
s
 

T
y
p
e
 

o
f 
it
e
m
 

M
e
e
ti
n
g
 d
a
te
 –
 1
3
 N
o
v
e
m
b
e
r 
2
0
0
8
 

In
q
u
ir
y
 O
n
e
 

T
o
 r
e
c
e
iv
e
 e
v
id
e
n
c
e
 a
s
 t
h
e
 f
ir
s
t 
s
e
s
s
io
n
 

o
f 
th
e
 B
o
a
rd
’s
 I
n
q
u
ir
y
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

M
e
e
ti
n
g
 d
a
te
 –
 1
1
 D
e
c
e
m
b
e
r 
2
0
0
8
 

In
q
u
ir
y
 T
w
o
 

T
o
 r
e
c
e
iv
e
 e
v
id
e
n
c
e
 a
s
 t
h
e
 f
ir
s
t 
s
e
s
s
io
n
 

o
f 
th
e
 B
o
a
rd
’s
 I
n
q
u
ir
y
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

M
e
e
ti
n
g
 d
a
te
 –
  
8
 J
a
n
u
a
ry
 2
0
0
9
 

P
e
rf
o
rm

a
n
c
e
 M
a
n
a
g
e
m
e
n
t 
 
Q
u
a
rt
e
r 
2
 i
n
fo
rm

a
ti
o
n
 f
o
r 
2
0
0
8
/0
9
 (
J
u
ly
-

S
e
p
t)
 

A
ll 
S
c
ru
ti
n
y
 B
o
a
rd
s
 r
e
c
e
iv
e
 p
e
rf
o
rm

a
n
c
e
 

in
fo
rm

a
ti
o
n
 o
n
 a
 q
u
a
rt
e
rl
y
 b
a
s
is
 

P
M
 

C
h
il
d
re
n
’s
 S
e
rv
ic
e
s
 a
n
d
 

th
e
 C
h
il
d
re
n
 a
n
d
 Y
o
u
n
g
 

P
e
o
p
le
’s
 P
la
n
 

T
o
 m
a
in
ta
in
 a
n
 o
v
e
rv
ie
w
 a
c
ro
s
s
 t
h
e
 

B
o
a
rd
’s
 p
o
rt
fo
lio
, 
a
n
d
 t
o
 m
o
n
it
o
r 
th
e
 

d
e
v
e
lo
p
m
e
n
t 
o
f 
th
e
 C
h
ild
re
n
’s
 S
e
rv
ic
e
s
 

a
rr
a
n
g
e
m
e
n
ts
 i
n
 L
e
e
d
s
 

T
h
e
 B
o
a
rd
 h
a
s
 a
g
re
e
d
 t
o
 m
o
n
it
o
r 
p
ro
g
re
s
s
 

a
g
a
in
s
t 
th
e
 p
ri
o
ri
ti
e
s
 i
n
 t
h
e
 P
la
n
 o
n
 a
 q
u
a
rt
e
rl
y
 

b
a
s
is
 

P
M
 

R
e
c
o
m
m
e
n
d
a
ti
o
n
 

T
ra
c
k
in
g
 

T
h
is
 i
te
m
 t
ra
c
k
 p
ro
g
re
s
s
 w
it
h
 p
re
v
io
u
s
 

S
c
ru
ti
n
y
 r
e
c
o
m
m
e
n
d
a
ti
o
n
s
 o
n
 a
 

q
u
a
rt
e
rl
y
 b
a
s
is
 

 
M
S
R
 

M
e
e
ti
n
g
 d
a
te
 –
 5
 F
e
b
ru
a
ry
 2
0
0
9
 

In
q
u
ir
y
 O
n
e
 

T
o
 r
e
c
e
iv
e
 e
v
id
e
n
c
e
 a
s
 t
h
e
 s
e
c
o
n
d
 

s
e
s
s
io
n
 o
f 
th
e
 B
o
a
rd
’s
 i
n
q
u
ir
y
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

Page 62



S
c
ru
ti
n
y
 B
o
a
rd
 (
C
h
il
d
re
n
’s
 S
e
rv
ic
e
s
) 
 

D
ra
ft
 W

o
rk
 P
ro
g
ra
m
m
e
 2
0
0
8
/0
9
  

 

It
e
m
 

D
e
s
c
ri
p
ti
o
n
 

N
o
te
s
 

T
y
p
e
 

o
f 
it
e
m
 

M
e
e
ti
n
g
 d
a
te
 –
  
5
 M
a
rc
h
 2
0
0
9
 

In
q
u
ir
y
 T
w
o
 

T
o
 r
e
c
e
iv
e
 e
v
id
e
n
c
e
 a
s
 t
h
e
 s
e
c
o
n
d
 

s
e
s
s
io
n
 o
f 
th
e
 B
o
a
rd
’s
 I
n
q
u
ir
y
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

M
e
e
ti
n
g
 d
a
te
 –
 2
 A
p
ri
l 
2
0
0
9
 

P
e
rf
o
rm

a
n
c
e
 M
a
n
a
g
e
m
e
n
t 
 
Q
u
a
rt
e
r 
3
 i
n
fo
rm

a
ti
o
n
 f
o
r 
2
0
0
8
/0
9
 (
O
c
t-

D
e
c
) 

A
ll 
S
c
ru
ti
n
y
 B
o
a
rd
s
 r
e
c
e
iv
e
 p
e
rf
o
rm

a
n
c
e
 

in
fo
rm

a
ti
o
n
 o
n
 a
 q
u
a
rt
e
rl
y
 b
a
s
is
 

P
M
 

C
h
il
d
re
n
’s
 S
e
rv
ic
e
s
 a
n
d
 

th
e
 C
h
il
d
re
n
 a
n
d
 Y
o
u
n
g
 

P
e
o
p
le
’s
 P
la
n
 

T
o
 m
a
in
ta
in
 a
n
 o
v
e
rv
ie
w
 a
c
ro
s
s
 t
h
e
 

B
o
a
rd
’s
 p
o
rt
fo
lio
, 
a
n
d
 t
o
 m
o
n
it
o
r 
th
e
 

d
e
v
e
lo
p
m
e
n
t 
o
f 
th
e
 C
h
ild
re
n
’s
 S
e
rv
ic
e
s
 

a
rr
a
n
g
e
m
e
n
ts
 i
n
 L
e
e
d
s
 

T
h
e
 B
o
a
rd
 h
a
s
 a
g
re
e
d
 t
o
 m
o
n
it
o
r 
p
ro
g
re
s
s
 

a
g
a
in
s
t 
th
e
 p
ri
o
ri
ti
e
s
 i
n
 t
h
e
 P
la
n
 o
n
 a
 q
u
a
rt
e
rl
y
 

b
a
s
is
 

P
M
 

R
e
c
o
m
m
e
n
d
a
ti
o
n
 

T
ra
c
k
in
g
 

T
h
is
 i
te
m
 t
ra
c
k
 p
ro
g
re
s
s
 w
it
h
 p
re
v
io
u
s
 

S
c
ru
ti
n
y
 r
e
c
o
m
m
e
n
d
a
ti
o
n
s
 o
n
 a
 

q
u
a
rt
e
rl
y
 b
a
s
is
 

 
M
S
R
 

S
c
h
o
o
l 
p
e
rf
o
rm

a
n
c
e
 a
n
d
 

O
fs
te
d
 I
n
s
p
e
c
ti
o
n
s
  

 

A
n
n
u
a
l 
re
p
o
rt
 o
n
 s
c
h
o
o
l 
p
e
rf
o
rm

a
n
c
e
 

a
n
d
 b
ia
n
n
u
a
l 
u
p
d
a
te
 o
n
 O
fs
te
d
 

In
s
p
e
c
ti
o
n
s
 a
n
d
 s
c
h
o
o
ls
 c
a
u
s
in
g
 

c
o
n
c
e
rn
 

T
h
e
 S
c
ru
ti
n
y
 B
o
a
rd
 a
g
re
e
d
 i
n
 2
0
0
6
/0
7
 t
o
 

c
o
n
s
id
e
r 
th
e
s
e
 r
e
p
o
rt
s
 t
o
 E
x
e
c
u
ti
v
e
 B
o
a
rd
 

P
M
 

A
n
n
u
a
l 
R
e
p
o
rt
 

T
o
 a
g
re
e
 t
h
e
 B
o
a
rd
’s
 c
o
n
tr
ib
u
ti
o
n
 t
o
 t
h
e
 

a
n
n
u
a
l 
s
c
ru
ti
n
y
 r
e
p
o
rt
 

 
 

 K
e
y
: 
 

R
F
S
 –
 R
e
q
u
e
s
t 
fo
r 
s
c
ru
ti
n
y
 

R
P
 –
  
R
e
v
ie
w
 o
f 
e
x
is
ti
n
g
 p
o
lic
y
 

D
P
 –
 D
e
v
e
lo
p
m
e
n
t 
o
f 
n
e
w
 p
o
lic
y
 

M
S
R
 –
 M
o
n
it
o
ri
n
g
 s
c
ru
ti
n
y
 r
e
c
o
m
m
e
n
d
a
ti
o
n
s
 

P
M
 –
 P
e
rf
o
rm

a
n
c
e
 m
a
n
a
g
e
m
e
n
t 

B
 –
 B
ri
e
fi
n
g
s
 (
in
c
lu
d
in
g
 p
o
te
n
ti
a
l 
a
re
a
s
 f
o
r 
s
c
ru
ti
n
y
) 

Page 63



S
c
ru
ti
n
y
 B
o
a
rd
 (
C
h
il
d
re
n
’s
 S
e
rv
ic
e
s
) 
 

D
ra
ft
 W

o
rk
 P
ro
g
ra
m
m
e
 2
0
0
8
/0
9
  

 

W
o
rk
in
g
 G
ro
u
p
s
 

 
W
o
rk
in
g
 g
ro
u
p
 

M
e
m
b
e
rs
h
ip
 

P
ro
g
re
s
s
 u
p
d
a
te
 

D
a
te
s
  

Y
o
u
n
g
 P
e
o
p
le
’s
 S
c
ru
ti
n
y
 

F
o
ru
m
 –
 P
ro
te
c
ti
n
g
 o
u
r 

E
n
v
ir
o
n
m
e
n
t 

M
e
m
b
e
rs
 o
f 
L
e
e
d
s
 Y
o
u
th
 

C
o
u
n
c
il 
a
n
d
 R
O
A
R
 

T
e
rm

s
 o
f 
re
fe
re
n
c
e
 a
g
re
e
d
 A
p
ri
l 
2
0
0
8
 

C
u
rr
e
n
tl
y
 t
a
k
in
g
 e
v
id
e
n
c
e
 

 

 
 

 
 

  

Page 64


	Agenda
	6 Minutes of Last Meeting
	7 Inclusion Statement - Formal Response
	Item 7 a
	Item 7 b

	8 Recommendation Tracking
	Item 8 a
	Item 8 b

	9 Children and Young People's Plan 2009: Consultation Process
	Item 9 a
	Item 9 b

	10 Work Programme
	Item 10 a
	Item 10 b


